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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
BERBERZMARAA(NBRA]) GEMKNEE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main
Board. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”) of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company’,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.

GEMDABREMRERLTHARAETEESR
ERBHFNEATRE—BLTHHS - BE
REEETHRBRERZELTANBERR XLk
KBBREAFEREHEERERE -

ZREGEMET AR -—RAFNELF £
GEMEENEHTHEENERETNEFK
EBRANTERBER - FREEZRELGEM
BEENRSSHFARNEBENTS -

BEXGREENERAFIREEHERZHE
RG] ([BXPT) B XSS T RE - 2
HERR I\ T B T T B (BT - AR BTBE
TBAER & 2 BF 2 AE (0] 5877 2 1T 2 A S T 10 R
ZE N 5| BET 1B ASE (I E(F -

IR TIIRIEHE T GEM B35 T A([ GEM
LR TiIEH B B EINE IR B 5 B R B R 2
AR RE] ZERANERF  ZHEBEE
B ) E# - AR EFE ([ EE)FERAIHE
T ER R AL S EEZEE L - EFEIEL
— R EEHEER  HFIIRAL M A
REFEHEHETBEAX T EEEETE I
BREGHGEK L RIEERAMER - HE
A ] RAL H AR B AR -



CONTENTS
B &

CORPORATE INFORMATION
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

NEER

ITEHREE

B E R LM

EEREAEEENEREFE

BEEgWmE

RBE - g REBRS

B BA S

AP BtRR

o)

E\
&

®

=) A

ki
o>
Niil
k>
i
fein

=

A MR

MR

17

21

36

56

99

107

108

110

111

113

212

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
hereby present the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2023.

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong Fai
Jewellery (BIFEILKE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the New

Territories.

The Group’s principal products are jewellery products including
gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products, which are produced
in-house at its production facility in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The Group also engages in the wholesale of
its jewellery products to other jewellery retailers, and sale of gold

products which are recycled from the general public.

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand the Group’s
jewellery design collection in line with customer needs, preferences
and market trends and expand its retail presence to capture a wider
range of market opportunities when the economic environment and
retail industry in Hong Kong further improve. We are extending our
marketing campaign to social media in the hope that it will bring a
desirable return to the shareholders of the Company and sustain a

long-term growth of the Group.

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 23 June 2023

BRIPRIR -

RERABEGEEEIZERERARN(TERAT] - &
BENMBAR  SiEAIKNER])  EWiEE
;‘%laizomﬁaﬂ STHIEFEMNFERE -

FEBREZEANREENEERAUED 21
FEBA R R R AR B AT BIE

HE | RETEEMERNELS  TEHARE
AEENTEEREURBEER  BIEELGERK

BENESUBER  RZERETEARAMR
(ThE D) RINTHEEREBITEE - ZEBTR
REMHEAKETERRBEREER  UEE
RARERNESER °

ERK BEAEREBERBERTERE—HiF
o AERBBHBAREBNIRE R R
NAEEPHENXR - EFATHBE  AETeE
FETEREY  LESBEMSEE - HMEKD
SEFEEBMREML RS URARFRRS
KEE@ER WK AEENREER -

BER

FERITKARE

&% 0 202396 23 H

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through
its network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (BIFEILKE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group possesses
the means to control the diversity, quality and pricing of its own
jewellery designs produced in-house at its production facility in
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Group’s principal products are jewellery products, including
gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products. The Group also
engages in the wholesale of its jewellery products to other jewellery
retailers, and the sale of gold products which are recycled from the

general public.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately HK$29.5 million,
or approximately 27.5%, from approximately HK$107.3 million for
the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$136.8 million
for the year ended 31 March 2023. The increase in revenue was
mainly driven by an increased revenue of approximately HK$17.1
million from the sales of gold jewellery products, approximately
HK$8.8 million from the sales of diamond, karat gold, jade, pearl,
platinum jewellery products (the “gem-set jewellery products”),
and approximately HK$3.6 million from trading of recycled gold
products. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the COVID-19
in Hong Kong was generally stable and the Group was able to
sustain a positive revenue growth momentum. Also, the Hong
Kong government launched the consumption voucher schemes in
April and August 2022, which stimulated local consumption and

contributed to the significant revenue growth during the period.
Revenue by Products
(a) Gem-set jewellery products

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s revenue
generated from the sales of gem-set jewellery products
increased by approximately HK$8.8 million, or approximately
17.0%, from approximately HK$51.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 to approximately HK$60.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023. Such increase was mainly attributable
to the continuous recovery of local consumer sentiment and

foot traffic in our shops.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESWmE D

(b)

(c)

Gold jewellery products

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s revenue
generated from the sales of gold jewellery products increased
by approximately HK$17.1 million, or approximately 45.6%,
from approximately HK$37.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2022 to approximately HK$54.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023. The increase was mainly attributable
to the continuous recovery of local consumer sentiment and
foot traffic in our shops and the fluctuation of global pure gold

prices.
Trading of recycled gold products

The Group’s revenue from trading of recycled gold products
increased by approximately HK$3.6 million, or approximately
19.8%, from approximately HK$18.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 to approximately HK$21.7 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023. The increase was mainly attributable
to the continuous recovery of local consumer sentiment and
foot traffic in our shops and the fluctuation of global pure gold

prices.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESWmE DM

Revenue by Business (sales channels)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retail operation

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s revenue
generated from retail operation increased by approximately
HK$25.8 million, or approximately 33.1%, from approximately
HK$78.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to
approximately HK$103.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2023. Such increase was mainly attributable to the continuous
recovery of local consumer sentiment and foot traffic in our

shops.
Wholesales

For both years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
the Group’s revenue generated from wholesale channel was
stable, and amounted to approximately HK$11.3 million and

approximately HK$11.2 million, respectively.
Trading of recycled gold products

The Group’s revenue from trading of recycled gold products
increased by approximately HK$3.6 million, or approximately
19.8%, from approximately HK$18.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 to approximately HK$21.7 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

Cost of goods sold

The Group’s cost of goods sold increased by approximately

HK$26.5 million, or approximately 33.9%, from approximately

HK$78.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$104.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2023. The increase

in cost of goods sold was mainly due to the continuous recovery of

local consumer sentiment and foot traffic in our shops, leading to an

increase in units of goods sold.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DN

Overall Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately HK$2.9 million,
or approximately 10.1%, from approximately HK$29.2 million for
the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$32.1 million
for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Group’s gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 27.2% for the year ended 31 March
2022 to approximately 23.5% for the year ended 31 March 2023.
There are no significant changes of gross profit margin policy for
the Gem-set jewellery products and gold jewellery products during
the year ended 31 March 2023. However, there are changes in the
composition of the revenue by products during the year ended 31
March 2023, with the revenue from sales of gold jewellery products,
which has a lower gross profit margin as compared to the other
products, accounting for a greater proportion of the total revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2023, which therefore causes a decrease

in gross profit margin.
Other income

Other income for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$2.3 million (2022: approximately HK$1.0 million),
representing an increase of approximately HK$1.3 million as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2022. The increase in
other income was mainly due to the receipt of the Anti-epidemic
Fund under the Employment Support Scheme of approximately
HK$1.2 million and receipt of Technology Voucher Programme Fund
of approximately HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2023,
while such government grants were not available for the year ended
31 March 2022.

Other gains/(losses), net

Other net gain for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to gain
of approximately HK$0.1 million (2022: loss of approximately HK$1.8
million). The gain was mainly due to net gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") of approximately HK$0.1
million for the year ended 31 March 2023 while net loss on financial
assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$1.9 million was recognised for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$1.2 million (2022: approximately HK$1.1 million).

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs for the year ended 31 March 2023
amounted to approximately HK$19.8 million (2022: approximately
HK$21.3 million), representing a decrease of approximately HK$1.5
million or approximately 7.2% as compared with the corresponding
period in 2022. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease
in depreciation expense on right-of-use assets by approximately
HK$2.1 million, and was partially offset by the increase in other
staff’'s salaries and other benefits by approximately HK$1.1 million

during the period.
General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2023 amounted to approximately HK$15.9 million (2022:
approximately HK$14.7 million), representing an increase of
approximately HK$1.2 million or approximately 7.8% as compared
with the year ended 31 March 2022. The increase was mainly due
to increase in salaries and other benefits and legal and professional

fee during the year.
Taxation

Income tax credit for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$0.7 million (2022: income tax credit of
approximately HK$1.4 million), representing a decrease of income
tax credit of approximately HK$0.7 million as compared with the
year ended 31 March 2022. The decrease was primarily due to
the decrease in loss before taxation in Hong Kong. The particulars
of the Group’s taxation are set out in note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements.
Dividend

The board (the “Board”) of Directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
March 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
TREASURY POLICY

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2023, total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$128.3 million (2022: approximately HK$129.2
million), which was financed by total liabilities and shareholders’
equity (comprising share capital and reserves) of approximately
HK$57.9 million (2022: approximately HK$56.2 million) and
approximately HK$70.4 million (2022: approximately HK$73.0
million), respectively.

The total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31
March 2023 amounted to approximately HK$28.9 million (2022:
approximately HK$28.3 million), and current ratio as at 31 March
2023 was approximately 1.63 times (2022: approximately 1.99
times) mainly due to the increase in amount due to a controlling
shareholder and decrease in financial assets at FVTPL during the
year.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing total
debts (total debts are defined to include payables incurred not in
the ordinary course of business) by total equity as at the end of
each of the financial year, increased from approximately 38.8% as
at 31 March 2022 to approximately 41.0% as at 31 March 2023. The
said increase was primarily due to the decrease in the level of total

equity.

The Group has no available unutilised bank loan facilities as at 31
March 2023 (2022: Nil).

The Directors are of the view that as at the date hereof, the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to support its business and
operations.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the reporting period. The management of the
Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of trade receivables
by performing ongoing credit assessments and monitoring prompt
recovery and if necessary, makes adequate impairment losses
for irrecoverable amounts. In order to achieve better cost control
and minimise the cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised and cash is generally deposited with leading licensed
banks in Hong Kong and denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

Capital Structure

The Company’s shares (“Shares”) were successfully listed on GEM
on 27 March 2019. There has been no change in the Company’s
capital structure since 27 March 2019 to the date of this annual
report. The capital structure of the Group comprises issued share
capital and reserves. The Directors review the Group’s capital

structure regularly.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$7,500,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
750,000,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any pledge of assets
(2022: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this annual report, the
Group did not have any other plans for material investment and

capital assets as at 31 March 2023.
Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of US$
and RMB. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will be
immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary assets and liabilities

are held by group entities having HK$ as their functional currency.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did not have
any hedging arrangements. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considering hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise. The
management of the Group considers the exposure to the foreign

exchange risk fluctuation for the Group is not material.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DN

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$0.2 million (2022: approximately HK$0.3 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2023, the Group and the Company had no material
contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed 75 (2022: 85) staff
(including Executive Directors). We determine employees’
remuneration based on factors such as qualification, duty,
contributions and years of experience. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group had no significant obligation apart from the defined
contributions schemes and there is no forfeited contribution arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme and which
were available to reduce contributions payable. In addition, the
Group provides comprehensive training programs to its employees
or sponsors the employees to attend various job-related training

courses.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purposes of, among others, providing
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contributes to the
success of the Group’s operations. Further details in relation to
the share option scheme and share award scheme are set out in
paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award

Scheme” under the “Report of Directors” in this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

On 6 September 2022, Depasser Group Holdings Company
Limited (the “Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Fu
Chun Keung (the “Vendor”), an executive director and chairman
of the Company, pursuant to which the Purchaser has agreed to
acquire and the Vendor has agreed to sell shares of Dia Myth
Jewelry (MFY) Co., Limited (“Dia Myth”) which are equivalent to
20% of its total issued share capital at a cash consideration of
HK$8,900,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

The shares of Dia Myth were originally owned as to approximately
96% by the Vendor and approximately 4% by Ms. Fu Wan Ling,
the sister of the Vendor and a Director. Upon completion of the
above transaction, the shares of Dia Myth shall be owned as to
approximately 76% by the Vendor, approximately 4% by Ms. Fu and
20% by the Company through the Purchaser respectively. The Board
is of the view that upon entering into the above transaction, the
Company can ensure that the increase in rental costs of a property
owned by Dia Myth and rented by Chong Fai Group Holdings
Company (the “Tenant”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, will be controllable for the forthcoming 5 years and the
profit of Dia Myth can, to certain extent, set off the rental costs to be
paid by the Tenant to Dia Myth.

The above transaction constituted a discloseable and connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Board confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Further details of the above transaction are set out in the

Company’s announcement dated 6 September 2022.

Other than disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and capital assets during the year ended 31 March
2023.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks and uncertainties involved in the Group’s
current operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control.
The most significant risks relating to the business such as (i)
price fluctuation of jewellery raw materials of the Group’s jewellery
products could materially and adversely affect its business; (ii) the
Group may not be able to renew the leases of its retail stores which
may affect its business and operation when the relevant leases
expire or terminate; (iii) the Group may not be able to sustain its
profitability; (iv) the Group has high gearing ratio that may expose
it to liquidity risk; and (v) challenges or continued downturn in
economic conditions due to COVID-19 may affect the demand for
the products which could adversely affect the Group’s sales or
growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DN

OUTLOOK

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the COVID-19 in Hong Kong
was generally stable and the Group was able to sustain a positive
revenue growth momentum. Also, the Hong Kong government
launched the consumption voucher schemes in April and August
2022, which stimulated local consumption and contributed to the

significant revenue growth during this financial year.

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand the Group’s
jewellery design collection in line with customer needs, preferences
and market trends and expand its retail presence to capture a wider
range of market opportunities when the economic environment and
retail industry in Hong Kong becomes better. We are extending our
marketing campaign to social media in the hope that it will bring a
desirable return to the shareholders and sustain a long-term growth

of the Group.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESRSREEENEBEFRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fu Chun Keung (“Mr. Fu”)

Mr. Fu, aged 55, was appointed as the chairman, the chief executive
officer and an executive Director of the Company in January 2018.
Mr. Fu is the major founder of the Group which was established in
1997, and now responsible for supervising overall management and
strategy planning of the Group as well as its daily operation and

management.

Mr. Fu is the spouse of Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk, an executive Director,

and the younger brother of Ms. Fu Wan Ling, an executive Director.
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk (“Ms. Cheung”)

Ms. Cheung, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director in
March 2018. Ms. Cheung is the head of the Group’s procurement
department, and is responsible for formulating corporate and

business strategies.

Ms. Cheung has over 20 years’ experience in the jewellery industry
and joined the Group since 1999. Ms. Cheung was awarded by the
GIA a certificate for completing the requirements of the program
in Diamond Essentials in November 2014, and a certificate for
completing the requirements of the program in Diamonds and
Diamond Grading as well as a diploma certificate for completing
the diploma program in Graduate Diamonds respectively in January
2015.

Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and a sister-in-law of Ms. Fu

Wan Ling, an executive Director.
Ms. Fu Wan Ling (“Ms. Fu”)

Ms. Fu, aged 62, was appointed as an executive Director in March
2018.

Ms. Fu is responsible for formulating the overall strategy,
supervising the administration and overseeing the inventory of the
Group.

Ms. Fu has over 20 years of experience in the jewellery industry and

joined the Group since August 1997.

Ms. Fu is the elder sister of Mr. Fu and the sister-in-law of Ms.

Cheung.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEENEBEFR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (“Mr. Chan”)

Mr. Chan, aged 73, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Chan is responsible for supervising and

providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Chan has over 32 years of working experience in the Inland
Revenue Department. He was an assistant commissioner

responsible for tax compliance before he retired in 2005.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of a tax consultancy company,
C T Tax Consultants Limited since 2006. Further, Mr. Chan is
an independent non-executive director of Medicskin Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8307) since 2014; and an independent non-
executive director of Hyfusin Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8512) since 2018, an independent non-executive director of Accel
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1283), since February 2020,
an independent non-executive director of Ye Xing Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1941) since February 2020, an independent
non-executive director of Wasion Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3393) since June 2020, and a non-executive director of
Alpha Financial Group Limited since September 2019. He was also
an independent non-executive director of Man Sang International
Limited (stock code: 938) from 2015 to 2016 and Guangdong
Tannery Limited (stock code: 1058) from 2006 to 2020.

Mr. Chan graduated from Central Queensland University of Australia
with a master degree in financial management in 1995. He has been
an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) (U.K.)
since 1974 and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
since 1994. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (formerly known as the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants) since 1986; a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 1983; and
a fellow member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising

Accountants since 1990.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESRSREEENEBEFRE

Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Tony (“Mr. Tony Chan”)

Mr. Tony Chan, aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director
since September 2018. Mr. Tony Chan is responsible for supervising

and providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Tony Chan possesses over 20 years of experience in the field of

business advisory, accounting and auditing.

Mr. Tony Chan obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Commerce (major in
Accounting) from the Australian National University in 1990. He is a
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 2012 and a member of the CPA Australia (formerly known as

Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants) since 1993.

Currently, Mr. Tony Chan is an independent non-executive director
of Theme International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) from
2015 to 2021. Mr. Tony Chan was as a non-executive director of
Good Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 8143) from
2016 to 2018 and re-designated as an executive director in 2018
and resigned from the position in 2019. Mr. Tony Chan also served
as an executive director of Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1718) from 2016 to 2018.

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick (“Mr. Wong”)

Mr. Wong, aged 65, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Wong is responsible for supervising and

providing independent judgment to the Board.
Mr. Wong is currently practising as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong obtained his Bachelor of Laws from The University of
London in 1987. Mr. Wong was called to the degree of utter barrister
of the Honourable Society of Gray’s Inn in 1989 and obtained Master
of Laws in international economic law in The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2009 and Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Directorship jointly issued by Hong Kong Baptist
University and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2011.
Mr. Wong obtained a degree in Master of Science in Corporate
Governance and Directorship (Distinction) issued by Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2011. Mr. Wong is also a Chartered Engineer,
a member of Institute of Energy, Institution of Mechanical Engineers

and Institution of Engineering and Technology.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Yung Kam Keung (“Mr. Yung”)
Head of Wholesales and Retail Department

Mr. Yung, aged 55, is the head of the Group’s wholesales and retail
department. Mr. Yung is responsible for overseeing the wholesaling
and retailing functions of the Group. Mr. Yung joined the Group in
2012.

Mr. Yung possesses over 20 years of experience in the jewellery

industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRSE

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of the business and its shareholders, and consistent
with the code provisions as set out in part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Group has considered the CG Code and has put in place corporate
governance practices to meet the code provisions. Since the listing
of the shares of the Company on GEM, the Company has adopted
and complied with, where applicable, part 2 of the CG Code during
the year ended 31 March 2023 up to the date of this Annual Report,
except for code provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG Code. Please
refer to the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer” below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the role of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung, the major founder of the Group, is chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer. With extensive experience
in the jewelry industry, Mr. Fu is responsible for the overall
management, decision-making and strategy planning of the Group
and is instrumental to the Group’s growth and business expansion.
Since Mr. Fu is the key person for the Group’s development and
he will not undermine the Group’s interests in any way under
any circumstances, the Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in Mr. Fu, is in the best interest
of the Group and beneficial to the management of the Group. In
addition, the senior management and the Board, which comprise
experienced individuals, could effectively check and balance the
power and authority of Mr. Fu. Therefore, the Board considers that
deviation from code provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG Code is

appropriate in such circumstances.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and internal control
of the Company. It oversees the Group’s businesses, lays down
strategies and monitors the Group’s operational and financial
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Board has general powers to manage and conduct the
Company’s business. The day-to-day operations and management
are delegated by the Board to the senior management of the
Company, who will implement the strategy and direction as laid
down by the Board.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board currently comprises six members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to 20 of
this annual report.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and each of independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years since 27 March 2019 (the “Listing Date”) and is subject
to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least once

every three years.

These service contracts and letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
term of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may
be renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRSE

At all times during the year ended 31 March 2023, the independent
non-executive Directors represent more than one-third of the
Board. Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than

three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board at all times complied with Rule 5.05A of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board, of whom Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony is the Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and considers them to be

independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”’) to ensure that the
Board procedures are followed. The company secretary of the

Company is Mr. Wong Ho Pang.
Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All Directors attended various trainings during the year ended 31
March 2023, including trainings regarding the updated GEM Listing
Rules, the responsibilities and continuous obligations of Directors
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide.
The Company had arranged suitable trainings for all Directors in
order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of

their continuous professional development.
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Training record of each Director received for the year ended 31

March 2023 is summarised below:

Name of Directors

BEEnA

Mr. Fu Chun Keung HER
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk REEXZT
Ms. Fu Wan Ling HERZT
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZELE
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRFRA L A4
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick Tk HE

The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and improving
its internal systems, including those in relation to internal supervision

and control, and risk management.
Indemnity of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
Liability Insurance for its Directors and officers covering the legal

action against the Directors and officers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company complied with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2)
and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate

qualifications or accounting or related financial expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. The Board considers that each
independent non-executive Director is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific independence
criteria as required by the GEM Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all corporate

communications of the Company.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In
compliance with code provision C.5.3 in Part 2 of the CG Code, at
least 14 days’ notice has been given for a regular Board meeting
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Notice, agenda and
board papers of regular Board meetings are sent to all Directors
within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to the meetings.
Directors are free to contribute and share their views at meetings
and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are
prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comments before the final version of which are

endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee

meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meetings and general meetings of the Company held

during the year ended 31 March 2023 are summarized as follows:

Board
meeting
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Executive Directors HiTES

Mr. Fu Chun Keung BERE A 5/5
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk REELT 5/5
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLT 5/5

Independent Non-executive Directors B F#{TES

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REELE 5/5
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick Tka%E 5/5
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony B EE 5/5
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All Board committees are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties. The terms of reference for each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have been
published on the websites of GEM (www.hkgem.com) and the
Company (www.chongfaiholdings.com). Each committee deals
with matters in accordance with its terms of reference so that they
could perform their functions properly, including but not limited to
reporting back to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.
All committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties and have access to independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense if so reasonably required. The list of the
chairman, members and duties of each of the committees are as

follows:
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent non-executive
Directors. The Board is satisfied that the current mix of experience
of the committee members facilitates an effective functioning of their

roles. The members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less

exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review, and
provide an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, oversee the audit process, scope of audit
and appointment of external auditors and perform other duties and

responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Audit Committee shall hold at least two meetings a year. The Audit
Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31 March 2023
to review and approve the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual

reports before submission to the Board for approval.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, two of
whom are Independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Fu Chun Keung
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish
and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for the
Directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board on remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet not less than once every
year. The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2023 to review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and the senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three Directors, two of whom
are independent non-executive Directors and one is executive
Director.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
Directors. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit
against objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of
diversity on the Board in accordance with the board diversity policy
adopted by the Company. Diversity of the Board will be considered
from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a Director.
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The Company will also take into account factors relating to its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2023 to review composition of the Board and
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and to adopt a nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

Nomination Policy

According to the Nomination Policy, in evaluating and selecting
any candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee would
consider the criteria, including, among other things, character
and integrity, qualifications (cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy), any potential
contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of
qualifications, skills, experience, independence and diversity, and
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s).

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon receipt of
the proposal on appointment of new director and the biographical
information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. The Nomination
Committee should then recommend to the Board to appoint
the appropriate candidate for directorship with a ranking of the
candidates (if applicable) by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each candidate.

Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
has considered Board diversity from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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We believe the Board has a well-balance of cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience where members of the Board have diversified branch of

learning and working experience in different countries and regions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision A.2 in Part 2 of the CG Code, the
Board is responsible for performing the duties relating to corporate
governance functions. The Board has the following responsibilities
in performing the corporate governance duties of the Company
as follows: (i) developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations;
(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management
of the Group; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and (v) reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclose in the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings (the
“Required Standard of Dealings”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of them have confirmed that they
have complied with the Required Standard of Dealings during the
year ended 31 March 2023. No incident of non-compliance was
noted by the Company during such period.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the fees paid/payable to the

external auditors in respect of audit was approximately HK$500,000.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
during the reporting period. A statement from the auditors about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out on pages 99 to 106 of this annual report. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023, the Directors of the Company have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimated that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared

the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the

Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems. Such
internal control and risk management systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board with the supported of the Audit Committee as well as the
management, had conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems during the
year ended 31 March 2023 which covered financial, operational,
compliance procedural and risk management functions and had
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s

accounting and financial reporting function.

In light of the size and scale of the Group’s business, the Group
does not have an internal audit function as the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit function within the Group. The Board will continue to
review and consider to establish such department as and when it
thinks necessary.
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The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence
and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has
therefore made continued efforts to uplift its quality of corporate
governance. It has established an effective system of internal
controls and adopted a series of measures to ensure its safety and
effectiveness. As a result, the Group is able to safeguard its assets
and protect the interests of the shareholders. The Board is of the
view that the systems of internal control and risk management are
effective and there are no irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other
deficiencies that suggest material deficiency in the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control system.
Internal Control System

The Company has maintained an internal control system and its
implementation has been considered by the Audit Committee and
the Board as effective. Meanwhile, the Group strives for continual
improvement through efforts to enhance controls by providing
ongoing employee training and development, talent retention, and
other measures. The Group follows a disciplined and balanced
compensation framework with strong internal governance and
independent Board oversight. The impact of risk and control issues
are carefully considered in the Group’s performance evaluation and

incentive compensation processes.

The Group’s internal control system and procedures are designed to
meet its specific business needs and to minimise its risk exposure.
The Group has adopted different internal guidelines, along with
written policies and procedures to monitor and lessen the impact
of risks which are relevant to the Group’s business and control
the Group’s daily business operations. In order to ensure sound
implementation of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, the Group has also adopted various on-going measures as

set out below:

—  the Group has performed an internal control review and has

adopted a revised operations and procedures manual;

— the Group has improved its existing internal control framework
by adopting a set of internal control manual and policies,
which cover corporate governance, risk management,

operations and legal matters;
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— the Group will assess and monitor the implementation of
its internal control manual and policies by the relevant
departments and companies in the Group through regular

audits and inspections; and

—  the Group will provide internal training to staff as appropriate
in order to enable them to follow the internal control

procedures.

With reference to the internal control manual and policies of the
Group, the risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the Board with
the support of the Audit Committee and the management and will
be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the

Board. These systems were considered effective and adequate.

The Group will continuously monitor and improve the Group’s
management procedures to ensure that effective operation of those
internal controls are in line with the growth of the Group’s business

and good corporate governance practice.

Finance Director is responsible for overseeing the Company’s
internal control measures in relation to anti-money laundering and

cash management.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group has one main IT platform that supports its business
operations, namely POS system. The IT platform was developed
by an independent third party contractors to suit the Group’s
requirements and it is continually refined and upgraded to meet the

Group’s business needs.

The Group’s POS system records sales and inventory movements as
it is linked to every retail store. The Group’s management is able to
manage effectively the retail stores through the POS system which
provides them with the performance of each retail store and its
inventory status. With the ability of the Group’s POS system to track
the inventory movements in each retail store, the Directors are in a
better position to assess what type of products are more popular in
each retail store, which in turn enables the Group to respond more

swiftly to market demands.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company is set out as follows:

Payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company. The
Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time to
time. The declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board. The Board shall also take into
account the following factors when considering whether to propose

dividends and determining the dividend amount:
1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company

and each of the members of the Group;

3. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure

requirements and future expansion plans;
4. the Group’s liquidity position;

5. contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the shareholders or by the Company’s

subsidiaries to the Company;
6. taxation considerations;

7. general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Group; and

8. other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to
the Articles, general meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting should be held within two

months after the deposit of such requisition.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each

general meeting.

Under Article 12.3 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company may at all
times have the right, by a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require the convening of
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If, within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of the
Company under the Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meetings may refer to the preceding paragraph to make a written
requisition to require the convening of an extraordinary general

meeting of the Company.
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Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are published on the

Company’s website.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may

send written enquiries to the Company as follows:

Address: No. 6-13, Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road, Hung Hom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
Attention: Company Secretary

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there have been no

significant changes to the constitutional documents of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Ho Pang is the Company Secretary. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and he has
complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules by taking no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial

year ended 31 March 2023 to update his skills and knowledge.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 11 January 2018.
Pursuant to a reorganisation in preparation for the Listing, the
Company became the holding company of the Group. Details of the
reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus. The Company’s shares
were listed on the GEM on 27 March 2019 by way of share offer.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged engaged in the retail of its own products
through its network of seven retail stores under the brand name of
“Chong Fai Jewellery (BI#E¥£E )" strategically located in Kowloon
and the New Territories. The Group also engages in the wholesale
of its jewellery products to other jewellery retailers, and the trading
of recycled gold products from the general public to customers who

purchase recycled gold products from the Group.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set

out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The financial results of the Group for 2022/23 are set out on pages

107 to 211 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and assets and liabilities of the Group
announced in the past 5 years are set out on page 212 of this

annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

The fair review of the Group’s business is detailed in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 16 of this
annual report. The discussion constitutes a part of this Directors’

Report.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks faced by the Group are set out in page 15
of this annual report. As it is a non-exhaustive list, there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the disclosure. Besides, this
annual report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice
for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company. Investors are
advised to make their own judgment or consult professionals before

making any investment in the securities of the Company.
Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators are detailed in the financial review
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to
16 of this annual report. This discussion constitutes a part of this

Report of Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income of this annual report.

No final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2022: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 4% of the Group’s total revenue.
The five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 20% of
the Group’s total purchases. In addition, the largest customer
accounted for approximately 3% of the Group’s total revenue while
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 13% of the Group’s
total purchases. None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
March 2023, there were no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial performance of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023 and the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2023 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 107 and 108 respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options of
the Company are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive right under the Articles
of Association of the Company and the Cayman lIslands law, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 110 and in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had distributable reserve of
approximately HK$16,366,000, calculated under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Such amount includes share premium which
may be distributable provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company and its

subsidiaries made charitable donations of approximately HK$5,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2023

and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of

Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

In accordance with article 16.19 of the Articles, at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly, Ms. Fu
Wan Ling and Mr. Chan Cheong Tat will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into any service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which shall continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in

writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which shall continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

There was no transactions, arrangement or contract of significance
connected to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, or its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which any Director and the Director’'s connected
party had a direct or indirect material interest, subsisting at the end

of the year or at any time during that year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has in force
indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant statutes for
the benefits of the Directors. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Company’s Articles of Association in respect of
potential losses and liability associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against such Directors and the payment of any sum

primarily due from the Company that may be liable by the Directors.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the

benefit of the Directors is currently in force.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or exited during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has established a
Remuneration Committee to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all the Directors’
remuneration. The Directors’ remuneration is determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

EERNRS  THREHONEER

ARE -~ EMB AR - sEZER QR HEEMAR
EWMB A RBER L EARFRINFREME
BDABRY BAREMERERR  BHEFRE
FRETERIHRBAEARENEARS
RHHEL -

BEFFRERX

BZE2023F3A31HFE - RARRBBER
WA  BENEERISEANRERYI - B
APRERXHRERR AR A NEMEIZAA -
AR EEEA T MmN ARFAMELHNEER
AEBEEARZFESARAEEIZRARAAS]
B SRR N RIELRE

ARREHFAENEERSABEEERR -
MmEREENBBAEFRERBGCREEN -

BEEEH

FRAALET IR FEEBARRNZEHRERE
REDEBNEIBRITEEL °

EEHHMH

RESFGEM ETRBIM ST RSB EER
TR ARARERUFMEE SR AN AR EBE
ENHNERRERAESSREEE - EFH
MR EESKLRESHMBELBE  FTWEE
ERHEERURASENRBEREEMET
BRESTHOFBERAREAF RS P IEHREM
F11e

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

41



42

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules from each of the
Independent non-executive Directors and considers that all the
Independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat,
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2023, interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Name Capacity

®E 54

Mr. Fu? Interest in controlled corporation
BoEA? X EEER

(also a chief executive)

(b BITHUAEEL)

Ms. Fu® Interest in controlled corporation
B2 XL EER

Ms. Cheung®®
Rz t?®

Interest in controlled corporation,
interest of spouse

R EEs  IREER
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Notes:
1. All interests stated are long positions.
2. Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung collectively are interested in the entire

issued share capital of Mythe Group Holdings Company Limited (“MGH
Limited”) and they are therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by MGH Limited by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and she is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Fu by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, neither the Directors nor any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 March 2023 as defined in Section 352 of
the SFO. In addition, at no time during the year had the Directors
and chief executive of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) any interest in, or been granted,
or exercised any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO). Save as disclosed
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 March 2023, the interests or short positions of person in the
shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who
is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the
Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests or
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Name Capacity

=1 14

MGH Limited® Beneficial Interest
L4

Notes:

1. All interests stated are long positions.

2. The entire issued share capital of MGH Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung who are deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by MGH Limited by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group, or any other
substantial shareholders whose interests or short positions were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award scheme as
set out below, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the

Group, or existed during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The share award scheme was adopted by the Board on 19 March
2021 (the “Share Award Scheme”). Under the Share Award
Scheme, the Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion,
select any eligible persons and grant awarded Shares to them at
no consideration. The said eligible persons of the Share Award
Scheme includes (i) any individual or businesses that purchases the
goods and services from the retail stores or online sales services
or its subsidiaries or its consignment sales agent operated by
the Company whom the Board or its delegate(s) consider, in their
sole discretion, to have contributed or will contribute to the Group;
(i) any individual, being a full-time employee, Director (including
executive, non-exclusive and independent non-executive Directors)
whom the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion,
to have contributed or will contribute to the Group; and (iii) any
individual or business whom the Board or its delegate(s) considers,
in their sole discretion, to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. The awarded Shares shall be acquired by an independent
trustee, at the costs of the Company, and held under a trust on and
subject to, among others, the terms and conditions of the Share
Award Scheme. Awarded Shares will be vested in the selected
eligible persons according to the terms of grant determined by the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Bank of Communications
Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) purchased 1,160,000 (2022:
9,470,000) awarded shares at the costs of the Company (including
related transaction costs) in the sum of approximately HK$60,000
(2022: HK$693,000). As at 31 March 2023, the trustee held
10,630,000 shares of the Company purchased but not yet awarded
under the Share Award Scheme.

As at 31 March 2023, no awarded Shares had been granted, vested
and lapsed pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. A summary of the
Share Award Scheme is set out below, more details have been set
out in the announcement dated 19 March 2021:

Purposes and objectives

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to (i) recognize and
reward the contributions or potential contributions made or to be
made by the eligible persons to the Group; (ii) align the interests of
the eligible persons with those of the Company, and strive for the
future development and expansion of the Group; and (iii) attract
high-calibre personnel to join the Group and provide them with
incentives to participate in the continual operation and development
of the Group.
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Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of eight (8) years commencing on 19 March 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Administration

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board in accordance with the terms of the Share Award Scheme.
In addition, as provided for under the Share Award Scheme, the
Board entered into a trust deed (the “Trust Deed”’) with Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited and appointed it as the trustee
to assist with the administration and vesting of the awards granted
under the Share Award Scheme and in accordance with the Trust
Deed.

Scheme limit

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded under
the Share Award Scheme shall be 75 million Shares, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company as at the Adoption Date and as at the date of this annual
report, respectively. The Board shall not instruct the Trustee to
subscribe for and/or purchase any Shares for the purpose of the
Scheme when such subscription and/or purchase will result in such

threshold being exceeded.

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
selected participant shall not exceed 1 per cent (1%) of the total

number of issued Shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date.
Operation of the Scheme

The Board may from time to time, in its sole discretion, select any
eligible persons (other than any excluded persons) to participate in
the Share Award Scheme as selected participants and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded to such selected participants
out of the pool of Shares from which award shall be made (the
“Shares Pool”). The Board shall have the power to impose any
conditions on the rights of selected participants when deemed

appropriate.

In order to satisfy any Award to be granted under the Scheme
from time to time, the Trustee shall maintain a Shares Pool which

comprise the following:

(i such Shares as may be purchased by the Trustee on the
Stock Exchange by utilising the funds allocated by the Board

out of the Company’s resources;
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(i) such Shares as may be subscribed by the Trustee by utilising
the funds allocated by the Board out of the Company’s
resources, subject to the Company having obtained the
requisite shareholders’ approval in general meeting under
general mandate or specific mandate for the allotment and
issue of new Shares, the grant of listing of and permission to
deal in such Shares by the Stock Exchange, and compliance

with the applicable requirements under the GEM Listing Rules;

(iii)  such Shares as may be allotted or issued to the Trustee
as a holder of Shares, whether by way of scrip dividend or

otherwise; and

(iv)  such Shares which remain unvested and revert to the Trustee

due to the lapse of the Award.

The Trustee may purchase the Shares on the Stock Exchange at the
prevailing market price (subject to such maximum price as may be

from time to time prescribed by the Board).

Where any award is proposed to be made to a connected person
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) and the relevant award
of the Shares is to be satisfied by an allotment and issue of
new Shares, such award shall be separately approved by the
shareholders in general meeting with such connected person and
his associates abstaining from voting and shall comply with all other
requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules applicable to

such award.
Termination and the Remaining Life of the Scheme

This Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of: (i) the eighth
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of
early termination as determined by the Board provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected

participant.

Share awards in respect of 75,000,000 shares of the Company were
available for grant under the Share Awards Scheme as at 1 April
2022 and 31 March 2023, respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the written resolutions of

the sole shareholder passed on 6 March 2019 (the “Share Option

Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance

with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to the 31

March 2023, no share option was granted, exercised, outstanding,

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as

follow:

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below)
have had or may have made to the Group. The Share Option
Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

(i)  attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining
on-going business relationships with the Eligible
Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long term growth of the Group.

Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (c) below to the following persons (the “Eligible
Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries;

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group,
the assessment criteria of which are:

(a) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(b)  quality of work performed for the Group;

(c) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(d) length of service or contribution to the Group.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i)  the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii) ~ the nominal value of a Share.
Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
twenty-one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option
is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares of the Company available for
issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 75,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.
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(f) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed

1% of the Shares in issue.
(g) Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination

thereof.
(h) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing on 6 March 2019, subject to early

termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

Share options in respect of 75,000,000 shares of the Company were
available for grant under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 April
2022 and 31 March 2023, respectively.

Since there was no option or award granted for the year ended 31
March 2023, the number of shares that may be issued in respect of
the options and awards granted under all schemes of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023 divided by weighted average
number of shares in issue of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2023 is nil.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued share as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. For those related party transactions that
constitutes connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as the case may be) under the GEM Listing Rules,
those transactions are exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no other
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions with
related parties which are required to be disclosed in this annual
report in accordance with the requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) had any business or interests in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to protect the Group’s interest in its business activities,
on 6 March 2019, each of Mr. Fu, Ms. Cheung, Ms. Fu and
MGH Limited, the controlling shareholders of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholders”) as covenantors executed the deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”).
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In accordance with the Deed of Non-Competition, the Controlling
Shareholders jointly and severally agreed, whether as principal
or agent and whether undertaken directly or indirectly (including
through any close associate, subsidiary, partnership, joint venture
or other contractual arrangement of theirs), not to do the following
from the Listing Date and ending on the occurrence of the earlier of
(i) the date on which the shares of the Company cease to be listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange; or (ii) the date of which (a) the
Controlling Shareholders, individually or collectively cease to own,
directly or indirectly, 30% or more of the then issued share capital
of the Company and (b) the Controlling Shareholders, cease to

control the composition of a majority of the Board:

(a) directly or indirectly, either on their own account, in
conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm
or company, among other things, in any form carry on,
participate or be interested, engage or otherwise be involved
in or acquire or hold shares or interests in (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) or assist or support
a third party to engage in or participate in the current and
potential business engaged or to be engaged by the Group
referred to in the Prospectus including but not limited to
design, production, retail and wholesale of jewellery products
(the “Restricted Business”) and where they become aware of
such engagement of the Restricted Business they shall notify

the Company forthwith;

(b)  solicit or procure any of the suppliers and/or the customers
of the Group from time to time to terminate their business
relationships or otherwise reduce the amount of business with

the Group;

(c) solicit or procure any of the Directors, senior management or
other employees of the Group from time to time to resign or

otherwise cease providing services to the Group; and/or

(d)  unless with the prior written consent of the Company, disclose
any confidential information of the Group to any other third

parties.
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The Company has received a confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders on their compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Details of the undertaking has been set out in the section headed

“Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

BANK BORROWING

Particulars of bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 March 2023 are

set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of the
Group are set out in notes 9 and 33 to the consolidated financial

statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee include the review
and supervision of the financial reporting process, the internal
monitoring system and risk management system of the Group. As at
the date of this annual report, the audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong
Tat, Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

(chairman).

AARIBUWENER A RE 2 2023F 3 A31H 1E
FEBTTHRFRIENER -

BEAGENF BRI ERER EZ R R
fR]—8f -

RITER
ANEBN 2023453 A31 BRRITEZMETH RN
RE TS TRERIFE 26 ©

RAKEF T B

REBEABNFEHTFBEER G PBRER
Mi3E9 233 °

BEREES

ARFCKRIEZEZES  WERGEM EHH
A% 5.28 25533 R HEMBMBERE - B
ZEENIERE AR LEEAREENTE
[EHZR - AREGIRRRAREERLS - A
FHEH ERZESREIHKE - BHEIE
BIFATEEREERE - TREENRT
BREE(ERE) -

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

53



54

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, except for the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”), the Group has no material deviation from Part 2 of the
CG Code as set forth in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the accounting period covered by this annual report.
Code provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Fu is both
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In
view that Mr. Fu has been assuming day-to-day responsibilities in
operating and managing the Group, the Board believes that with
the support of Mr. Fu’'s extensive experience and knowledge in the
business of the Group, vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in Mr. Fu strengthens the solid
and consistent leadership and thereby allows for efficient business

planning and decision which is in the best interest of the Group.

The Directors consider that the deviation from code provision C.2.1
in Part 2 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances.
Notwithstanding the above, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for the Group’s operations, and

sufficient checks and balances are in place.

The Directors are committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders as a whole. The principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection to
minimize the impact of its activities on the environment. It is the
policy of the Group to promote clean operation and strives to making
the most efficient use of resources in its operations, and minimizing
wastes and emission. Details are set out in Environmental, Social

and Governance Report on pages 56 to 98 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s operations are
mainly carried out by the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
committed by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no material subsequent event affecting the business or
financial performance of Group which has come to the attention of

the Directors after 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 have been audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited,
who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (the
“AGM”) and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the auditors of the Company.

As at the date of this report, there has been no change in the

auditors of the Company in the preceding 3 years.

By order of the Board

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”)
is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong. The Group
is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (BI#EZKE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group possesses
the means to control the diversity, quality and pricing of its own
jewellery designs produced in-house at its production facility in
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The Group’s principal products are jewellery products,
including gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and

demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

The Group adheres to the management policies of sustainable ESG
development. We are also committed to handling the Group’s ESG
affairs effectively and responsibly, which is integrated as one of the
core components of our business strategy as we believe this is the

key to our continuous success in the future.
The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has established the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”).
The Taskforce comprises core members from different departments
and is responsible for collecting relevant information on our ESG
aspects for preparing the ESG Report. The Taskforce reports
to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), assists in identifying
and evaluating the Group’s ESG risks and the effectiveness of
the internal control mechanisms. The Taskforce also examines
and evaluates our performances in different aspects such as
environment, health and safety, labour standards and product
responsibilities in the ESG aspects. The Board sets up a general
direction for the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness

in the control of its risks and internal control mechanisms.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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SCOPE OF REPORTING

Unless specified otherwise, the ESG Report covers the Group’s
operating segments, including seven retail stores under the brand
name of “Chong Fai Jewellery” which are strategically located
in Kowloon and the New Territories in Hong Kong, office located
in Hung Hum and the production facility in Shenzhen. The ESG
Report covers the Group’s policies, compliance issues as well as
key performance indicators (“KPI”) in two subject areas, namely,
environmental and social of the above segments under the Group’s
operation from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023. We will continue
to expand the scope of disclosure in the future as the Group’s
data collection system and sustainable development work further

develop.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all
applicable provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
contained in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

For the Group’s corporate governance practices, please refer to
pages 21 to 35 for the section “Corporate Governance Report”

contained in the Group’s 2022/23 Annual Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2023.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related to its
business and ESG issues. In order to understand and address
stakeholders’ concerns, we communicate with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to shareholders and investors, customers
and business partners, employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies
and government authorities, and media and the public through
different channels such as conferences and electronic platforms.
In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Group
takes into account stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve
our performance through mutual cooperation to create greater value

for society.
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Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns

Communication Channels

& HEREE BERE
Shareholders and . Return on investment . General meeting and other shareholder
investors J & [l 7R meetings
R RIEEE . Corporate governance . BFERghEMBERAS
. TEESR . Financial reports
. Business compliance . Mg s
. EBERM . Announcements and circulars
. NERBE
. Website
. #uh

Customers and business o High quality products and

Customer satisfaction survey

environment
. REZE2MNITIERE

partners services . EPRMEERAE
BEPREEEH . = mE K E m AR e Customer service team
. Protect the rights of . BF RS E XK
customers o Customer support hotline and email
s REZP#EZR o EFRGME T
Employees o Employees’ compensation o Trainings, seminars and briefing
8T and benefits sessions
. B TH# i FsEF) o I A EMEERE
. Career development . Regular performance reviews
o BIXIRE o EHEMGHhL
° Health and safety working
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Stakeholders

Expectations and Concerns

Communication Channels

F0E MERREE BERE
Suppliers . Fair and open procurement o Supplier management meetings and
HAER . DNERAFERE events

. Sustainable sourcing . HEREESRNEH

. RSB RS

o Supplier audit
o HEEEZ

° Procurement manager
o IREBKIE
Regulatory bodies and o Compliance with laws and o Compliance manager
government authorities regulations . AR
BLE S R BT . BPEEER . On-site inspections
. Support economic o BEBE
development o Project manager of regulatory bodies
. RIS R o  EEMBIEALE
Media and the public o Involvement in communities o Community activities and partner
s YN J oy programs
. Business compliance . HEREBMEERHE
s EBAAM e Media
. Environmental protection . e
awareness o ESG reports
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report to
assist the Group in reviewing our operations and identifying relevant
ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters to our
businesses and stakeholders. Based on the assessed significant
ESG issues, a data collection questionnaire was prepared to collect
information from relevant departments and business units of the

Group.

The following is a matrix showing the Group’s material ESG topics in
the ESG Report:
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Materiality Matrix of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited
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LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS
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MATERIAL ESG TOPICS

B HEREAREEERE

1. Emission management 2. Waste management
e E 2 FEEYE R
3. Water management 4. Energy management
KERE R BERE R
5. Use of packaging materials 6. Working environment
BEMEERA THEERIR
7. Remuneration and benefits 8. Recruitment, promotion and dismissal
R B - BT MRS
9. Equal opportunities 10. Internal health and safety management
FEHE NEBRE R R 258
11. Safety production 12.  Training management
LEREE 2B
13.  Supply chain management 14. Quality assurance
fHEsEE IR BERE
15.  Protection of intellectual property (“IP”) Rights 16. Customer services
HEER([ABER]RE BF R
17.  Advertising and labelling 18. Protection of privacy
B RRE FLES (R &
19.  Anti-corruption 20. Corporate social responsibility
R&E rEHSRME

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems for ESG
issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance
with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG
Report or our performances in sustainable development by email:

info@chongfaijewellery.com.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Al.

Emissions

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
development in its operations. With the aim to
reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas
(“GHG") emissions, the Group has always been
exploring protection operating models of less impact
to the environment, recognising the importance of
environmental management, and striving to protect the
environment in order to fulfil the Group’s commitment to
social responsibility.

The Group’s mission is to minimise pollution to
the environment, make continuous improvement,
and comply with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. To achieve so, we have identified the
opportunities to reduce exhaust gas emissions,
wastewater discharge, water use, waste generation and
disposal, as well as energy consumption by analysing
the environmental risks within our operations, and
conducted regular monitoring to ensure the issues were
well managed.

The Group closely follows the latest national and
regional environmental protection laws and regulations,
thereby focusing on strengthening environmental
protection measures to comply with related local laws
and regulations and fully implement environmental
policies. The Group complies with applicable laws
and regulations, including “Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on Environmental
Impact Assessment”, “Administrative Regulations
on the Environmental Protection of Construction
Projects”, “Category-based Administration Catalogue
for Environmental Impact Assessment of Construction
Projects”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution”, “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”, “Law of
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC”, “Regulations
on Administration of Precursor Chemicals” and Hong
Kong’s “Waste Disposal Ordinance” etc.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

29587

AEEEFEEETPHNAHEERS
B o B TR AR EIR =R
(TRERB DN A&EE—EHF
BREBBZERINRELESE
N RBIREEENEEN - I
BAOIRERE  UEBTAEEEM
2ETREGE -

AEENEPERERMDERTN
AR FEYCE - WETHEBENIER
BERER REHE-BE #
MBAIITELTNRERR 2
Pr R D RE RPN - BEOKEER -
K BRI ELEFEEIANERAER
HME - 0 E B 1T BRI A RE AR
BRIZEEE -

AEBEBRBERSFTOER MR
BREREERER  EHMABIRE
RERR ETEHHEBERE
B EEEBRRRBRR - AEEE
SERERESR  BIER(PEARHK
MERFEREZL) (PEARHKM
BRRFETZENEL) (EREER
BREEEGKRD) (EREBRE
FETEHIBEEEEHE) (REA
REMBARRBRGAZE)  (PE
AR FEFBKF R RE) (P E
ARKMBIRBERBISRAE)
CREARANMBIEBREY SRR
PraE) (hEARAMEZ 24
BEE) (BHSEE2RmE RGN
BREKEYEEGRDDF -



For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did
not have any violation of relevant local environmental
laws and regulations in relation to exhaust gas and
GHG emissions, water and land discharge, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes that

have a significant impact on the Group.
Emission Management
Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group has generated limited amount of exhaust
gas emissions in its production facility. To mitigate
the exhaust gas emissions, the Group has engaged
independent qualified inspector to monitor and test the
water, air, soil, and other environmental conditions of its
production facility. It has also implemented its emission
control guidelines for cleaner production, for example,
dust filtering system, filtering system with activated
carbon absorbent and exhaust scrubber system were
installed to treat air pollutants which were mainly the
fugitive dust emissions and volatile organic compounds,
and met the legal emission standard before releasing
to the atmosphere. The installed systems, not only,
effectively reduce the exhaust gas emissions, but also

protect its workers’ health.
GHG Emissions

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are
direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) from combustion
of petrol for transportation and energy indirect GHG

emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity.

The Group actively adopts electricity conservation and
energy saving measures to reduce GHG emissions,

including:

. Adopts environmental conservation and energy
saving measures. Relevant measures are
described under “Energy Management” in Aspect
A2;

o Conducts monthly vehicle maintenance to reduce
fuel consumption effectively, thereby reducing

carbon and exhaust gas emissions;
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o Conducts annual inspections to ensure the

compliance with national emission standards; and

o Reduces the number of business trips through
utilising electronic communication such as video

conferences and WeChat meetings.

The employee’s awareness of reducing GHG emissions
has been increased through these GHG mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s total
GHG emissions' was approximately 124.59 tCO,e,
and its intensity’® was approximately 1.66 tCO.e
per employee.® The Group’s direct GHG emissions
(Scope 1) from petrol consumption of vehicles was
approximately 2.20 tCO,e, and the energy indirect GHG
emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity was

approximately 122.39 tCO.e.

Notes:

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to,
“The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix Il Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
latest released emission factors of China’s regional power
grid basis and CLP Power Limited, “Global Warming
Potential Values” from IPCC Fifth Assessment Report
(AR5).

2. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 75 full-time
employees in total which includes the office, retail
shops and production facility. The data is also used for
calculating other intensity data.

3. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s total
GHG emissions was approximately 142.79 tCO,e, and its

intensity was approximately 1.68 tCO,e per employee.
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Waste Management
Hazardous Waste Handling Method
Production facility

The Group produces a wide range of wastes across the
operations; therefore, it has established comprehensive
procedures to manage wastes — no matter whether they
are recyclable, non-recyclable or hazardous. Hazardous
wastes such as flammable materials (such as waste
cloth, waste gloves, waste cotton swabs and waste
cotton yarn) and corrosive wastes (such as container,
hydrochloric acid, electroplating rinse-wastewater) are
generally required more efforts and clear guidance
provided for the workers to follow including wastes
segregation, labelling, storage and transportation. The
Group has established guidelines in governing the
management and disposal of hazardous wastes, all the
hazardous wastes are collected by licensed contractors
for treatment, and complied with “The Measures for the
Administration of Permit for Operation of Dangerous
Wastes”. The Group purchases any precursor chemical
should report the type and quantity in demand, prior to
the purchase, to the public security authority of the local
people’s government at the county level in compliance
with the “Administrative Regulations on Precursor
Chemicals”. To promote waste reduction and recycling
practices, the Group encourages its employees to
recycle the recyclable materials and reuse useful parts
of the waste such as jewellery pieces and packaging to

divert the waste from landfills.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s
production of related products has decreased, leading
to the amount of hazardous wastes generated was

regarded as immaterial.
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Non-hazardous Waste Handling Method

The Group adheres to the waste management principles
and strives to properly manage and dispose all
wastes produced in its business activities. The waste
management practice has been complied with related
environmental protection laws and regulations. The non-
hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s business
activities mainly consist of paper, ink cartridges and
waste battery. After collection and sorting by the Group,
such wastes will eventually be collected and processed
by general waste service providers. Recyclables (such

as paper and ink cartridges) will be recycled.

The Group regularly monitors the consumption of paper,
ink cartridge and battery, and implements various
reduction measures. The Group emphasises the waste
management principle of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”
to encourage employees to sort waste at source and
recycle to achieve the objectives in waste reduction in
its operations. The Group maintains a high standard
in waste reduction, educates employees about the
importance of sustainable development and provides
relevant supports in order to enhance their skills and

knowledge in sustainability.

The Group has implemented measures to handle such
non-hazardous wastes and launched different reduction

initiatives, including but not limited to:

o Educated all employees on reducing the use of

disposable items such as plastic tableware;

o Purchased microwaves in offices to encourage
employees to take lunch boxes by themselves
instead of ordering takeaway food, which could

largely reduce the waste of food packages;
o Advocated the reusing of office stationeries; and

o Provided glass cups to clients and guests instead

of disposable ones.
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Paper Management

Office

One of the main natural resources consumed by the

Group is paper from its office printing machines. To

minimise the use of paper, the Group has put great

efforts into the implementation of following initiatives:

Chosen suppliers with more environmentally
friendly paper source, so as to indirectly reduce
the amount of tree losses while consuming the

same amount of paper;

Promoted paperless office, and disseminate
information by electronic means (i.e. via email or

e-bulletin boards) as much as possible;

Set duplex printing as the default mode for most

network printers when printouts are needed;

Disseminated the idea of “Think before print” by
using posters and stickers in offices to remind the

staff of avoiding unnecessary printings;

Reconsidered boxes and trays as containers
beside photocopier to collect single-sided paper

for reuse and recycling;

Used the back of old single-sided documents for

printing or as draft paper;
Recycled used stationery whenever possible; and

Used as less as paper whenever possible.

Retail shops

The Group’s retail shops has also consumed paper,

which are mainly the sales receipt notes. To minimise

the use of paper, the Group has put great efforts into

the implementation of following measures:

Tried to minimise printing excessive sales receipts

notes whenever possible;

Effectively distributed the sales receipts notes
to each retail shops according to their sales

performance; and
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. Used as less as sales receipts notes whenever

possible.

Through the above non-hazardous waste reduction
measures, the employee’s awareness in waste reduction
has been enhanced. For the year ended 31 March
2023, the Group’s total non-hazardous waste amount
was approximately 0.45 tonnes, its intensity was
approximately 0.006 tonnes per employee; in which
approximately 0.39 tonnes were paper, approximately
0.01 tonnes were ink cartridge and approximately 0.05

tonnes were waste batteries.*
Note:

4. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s total
non-hazardous waste were approximately 0.40 tonnes
of paper, approximately 0.01 tonnes ink cartridge and
approximately 0.07 tonnes of waste battery.

Wastewater

The Group’s major use of water occurs at its production
facility in the course of jewellery processing. The
wastewater may contain acids, alkali, various chemicals
and heavy metals. At the production facility in Shenzhen,
there is an onsite facility for neutralization, deionization
and sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water
is certified safe to discharge into the municipal network,
and the slag is properly handled by licensed operators.
The Group’s operation complies with the laws and
regulations, including but not limited to “Water Pollution
Control Ordinance” of Hong Kong, “the Law of PRC on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.

Since the office and retail shops’ wastewater discharged
by the Group will be disposed through the municipal
sewage pipe network to the regional water purification
plant, its water consumption amount is considered as
the amount of sewage discharged. The data on the
discharge of sewage will be described in the section

“Water Management” in Aspect A2.
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Use of Resources

The Group upholds and promotes the principle of
effective use of resources so as to monitor the potential
environmental impacts in our business operations.
Through the 3Rs principles, namely, “reduce, reuse
and recycle”, we promote green office and operation
environment, and minimise the environmental impacts of

the Group.

As mentioned in Aspect A1, the Group has set out
related environmental management policies and
procedures on resource usages such as water,
electricity and petrol. Monthly usage statistics are
used for focused management of the main energy
consumption equipment and regulation of equipment

operation for effective resource usage.
Energy Management

The major energy consumption of the Group in daily
operation are electricity consumption in the operation

and petrol consumption via transportation.

The Group has formulated rules and regulations to
achieve the goal of electricity saving and efficient
consumption. The relevant specific measures are as

follows:

o Selects energy-efficient equipment and electrical
appliances for production facility, office and shops

electricity use;

o Forbids the use of large-power electrical
appliances such as heaters, kettles, refrigerators,
etc., to avoid electricity overload. Employees
should turn off all electrical appliances that come

with them when they leave office;

o Turns off all unnecessary lights, air conditioners,
computers and other office equipment in office
areas, conference rooms and corridors when they

are not in use to avoid waste of electricity;

o Standardises office, production facility and even
retail shop lighting (when feasible) with energy

saving lights and LED lights;
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o Maintains indoor temperature at an optimal,

comfortable level to conserve energy;

o Switches off shop lightings by 11 p.m. as a
commitment to the “Charter on External Lighting”

organised by the Hong Kong Government;

o Regulates the use of air conditioners strictly to

prevent waste of electricity;

o Turns off computers (host and monitor) when
employees go out for a long time, and switch
computers to standby or sleep mode when

employees go out for lunch; and

o Enhances the maintenance and overhaul of
equipment, maintain the best condition of
all electronic equipment for effective use of

electricity.

As a result, the employee’s awareness was increased
by implementing these electricity and energy mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the total energy
consumption of the Group was approximately
246,386.34 kWh and its intensity was approximately
3,285.15 kWh per employee.® Petrol consumption from
vehicles was equivalent to approximately 8,001.34 kWh®,
and electricity consumption was approximately 238,385
kWh.

Notes:

5. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s total
energy consumption was approximately 291,081.39 kWh,
and its intensity was approximately 3,424.47 kWh per
employee.

6. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s petrol
consumption was approximately 825.6 litres.
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Water Management

The Group’s major water consumption is from the
production facility, office and retail shops’ fresh-water
consumption. The Group encourages all employees
and customers to develop the habit of conscious water
conservation. The Group has been enhancing its water
conservation promotion. Environmental messages are
posted on pantry and washrooms to remind employees
to save water. The employees’ water conservation
awareness has been increased with the above water-

saving measures.

Due to the Group’s business nature and its operations
are mainly in the cities, while the mining and
alchemy processes are performed by subcontracted
organisations, the procurement of suitable water sources

is not relevant to the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the total water
consumption of the Group was approximately 838.17
cubic meters, and its intensity was approximately 11.18

cubic meters per employee.’
Note:

7. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s total
water consumption was approximately 984.50 cubic
meters, and its intensity was approximately 11.58 cubic

meters per employee.
Use of Packaging Materials

Since the Group has retail business, it uses packaging
materials including paper box, paper bag and jewellery
pouch. The Group is actively promoting the packaging

reduction measures, including:

. Tried to minimise excessive packaging when

customers make a purchase;

. Encouraged the use of reusable shopping bags
and offered customers an incentive for using
a reusable shopping bag instead of plastic or

paper; and

o Promoted buy-back programs or upcycling
programs to encourage new sales with a trade-in

of old gold that can be recycled and reused.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
consumed approximately 0.56 tonnes of packaging
materials, which is approximate 0.007 tonnes per
employee. There were no paper boxes being consumed,
the consumption packaging materials consisted
of approximately 0.38 tonnes of paper bags and

approximately 0.18 tonnes of pouch bags. ®
Notes:

8. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s
packaging material consumption were approximately 0.59
tonnes, consisted of approximately 0.39 tonnes of paper
bags and approximately 0.20 tonnes of pouch bags.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s operations generate limited impact on its
environment due to its business nature. The Group still
pursues the best practice for environmental protection.
In addition to complying with related environmental laws
and regulations and international standards for proper
natural environment preservation, it has integrated
the concept of environmental protection and natural
resource conservation into its internal management
and daily operations in order to achieve the aim of

environmental sustainability.
Working Environment

The Group strives to provide employees with a
comfortable working environment to enhance working
efficiency. The Group maintains production facility,
office and retail shops discipline and environmental
hygiene, and ensures personal area and common areas
are neat and tidy. Employees monitor the conditions of
the community and workplace from time to time, set up
emergency plans in advance for risk mitigation, adopt
preventive and control measures for problem and risk
identification, and deal with the identified problems
and potential risks in time to maintain a sound working

environment.
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On the other hand, the Group regularly monitors
and measures indoor air quality of the workplace. It
maintains indoor air quality and filters pollutants and
dust via air purification equipment and regular cleansing

of the air conditioning system.
Climate Change Impact

The world’s climate has changed significantly in the
past decades — global temperatures have increased and
extreme weather events are becoming more frequent
and severe, which may cause disruptions to business
operations globally, and in turn adversely impact the

macro economy.

The Group mainly engages in the sale of self-
designed fine jewellery products. The increase in
global temperature may lead to an increase in energy
consumption by the Group’s offices and stores. The
Group will continue to monitor the potential risks
of climate change and its impacts on the Group’s
operations and customers, and devise and implement
preventive and emergency measures accordingly.
Besides, the Group will continue its efforts to control

energy consumption and carbon emissions.
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B1.

Employment

Employees are the greatest and most valuable asset
of the Group and its core competitive advantage.
Therefore, its success highly depends on the ability
to attract, cultivate and retain employees. The Group
adheres to a people-oriented approach, standardises
labour employment management to respect and protect
the legitimate interests of every employee. At the
same time, the Group strives to ensure its employees’
occupational health and safety for protecting labour
rights, stimulating employee’s enthusiasm, initiatives

and creativity to build a harmonious staff relationship.

The Group actively complies with labour laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the “Labour
Law of the PRC”, “Labour Contract Law of the PRC”,
“Regulations on the Implementation of the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC”, “Social Insurance Law of the
PRC”, “Interim Regulations on Levying Social Insurance
Premiums”, “Provisional Measures on Maternity
Insurance of Enterprise Employees”, “Regulation on
Unemployment Insurance”, “Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurances” and Hong Kong's “Employment
Ordinance”. The Group has accordingly formulated a
series of related personnel management policy to guide
employees to actively integrate personal pursuits into

the long-term of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did not
aware of any material non-compliance of laws and
regulations in respect of employment related issues
including but not limited to recruitment and dismissal,
remuneration and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination and

benefits and welfares.
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As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 75 full-time
employees in total, the following shows the details of the

Group’s human resources information:

RIERIE S B T AR

32%  42% —__

68%

W 3% Male W 30354~ Below 30 years old
W 30-507% 30-50 years old
518k LA _E 51 years old or above

W % Female

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system, and paid employees
based on the principles of fairness, competitiveness,
motivation, reasonableness and legitimacy. The
remuneration package of employees includes salary,
bonuses, allowances and commission. Salespersons are
entitled to guaranteed commission based on retail sales
amount, and will also be entitled to further commissions
subject to whether they can meet the sales target laid
out by the Group. Generally, employee salaries are
determined based on the employees’ qualification,
experience, position and seniority. The Group believes
that its remuneration package is competitive in the

market.

The Group has signed and executed the labour
contracts with employees in accordance with the
“Labour Contract Law of the PRC”, and Hong
Kong's “Employment Ordinance”. The signing rate
of labour contracts is 100%. In accordance with
the law and ordinance, the Group pays “five social
insurance and one housing fund” for its employees,
namely, endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund, to

ensure employees are covered by social insurance.
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The Group earnestly safeguards the legitimate interests
of labour in accordance with the requirement of the
national and local laws and regulations of the “Labour
Law of the PRC”. The Group respects the rights of
employees to rest and leave and the Group believes that
sufficient rest is good for employees to work efficiently
and so as increase productivity. The Staff Regulations
has issued to the employees to regulate the procedure
applying annual leave. The Group has also followed
the “Regulation on Paid Annual Leave for Employees”
and other relevant regulations, regarding the policies
about working hours, working overtimes and wages,
and paid annual leave. The Group puts emphasis on the

employees’ rights of rest periods and holidays.
Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group has continuously established and improved
its recruitment system. In the recruitment process, the
Group has standardised the hiring procedures and
recruitment principles, adhering to the hiring principles
of morality, knowledge, ability, experience and physique
applicable to the job positions. In such ways to
continuously attract talents by upholding principles of

justice, fairness and openness.

The Group has implemented a fair and open assessment
system to evaluate employees’ working performance and
internal assessment results. The results would be the
basis for employee promotion. The Group also creates
opportunities for their promotion and development as

well as explore their potential at work.

The Group specifies the basis and procedures for
staff promotion, transfer and demotion management,
and regulations for departure process to protect the
interests of both employees and the Group and reduce

the conflicts in between.
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The management believes that employees are important
assets of the Group, and remains committed to
attracting and retaining talent with diverse backgrounds
for achieving sustainable growth and maintaining a
stable turnover rate. The turnover rates of the Group’s
workforce as at 31 March 2023 are as below:

By Region it &

Hong Kong &8 36%
Mainland China /Bl At 14%

By Gender 1Z1£ 5l

Female & 32%
Male 5 25%

EEBRE BINALEZESR
BE BORSILHBETRAEER
AT NERAI R EIRR RERFR
TERRAE - )R2023F3A31H -

AEEZETHRARMT
By Age & #

<30 25%
30-50 35%
>51 22%

By Work Location & T {£ith B
Office !HRAE 37%
Store 54 34%
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Equal Opportunities

The Group strictly complies with national and local
standards by adopting a fair, equitable and open
requirement process and develop relevant system files
to eliminate discrimination in the recruitment processes.
Employees face no discrimination regardless of race,
sex, colour, age, family background, ethnic tradition,
religion, physical fitness and nationality and thus
allowing them to enjoy fair treatment in every aspect

including recruitment, remuneration, training and

promotion.

B2. Health and Safety

The Group highly recognises the importance of health
and safety of the employees. The Group commits to
provide employees with a healthy, safe and comfortable
working environment and strives to eliminate potential
health and safety hazards at the workplace. The Group
strictly enforces relevant laws and regulations such as
the “Labour Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases”,
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC” and
“Fire Protection Law of the PRC”, “Occupational Safety

and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong, etc.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2021, the Group did not aware of any
accidents that resulted in death or significant physical
injury no lost days due to work injury, and no claims
or compensation were paid to its employees due to
such events. No material non-compliance of laws and

regulations relevant to health and safety of employees

were found.
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Internal Health and Safety Management

The Group maintains an internal audit and inspection
system to ensure the health and safety of customers
and employees during its operation in compliance with
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”. The review processes are
designed to ensure the workplace is under constant
monitoring, so as to identify and correct the deficiencies
that do not meet the standards. The Group regularly
inspects and reviews the safety issues of production
facility, offices and retail shops and actively encourages
employees to report health and safety incidents and

risks.

On the other hand, the Group provides staff with health
and safety notifications to provide related information
and increase their awareness. The Group also arranges
body checks for employees, particularly pay attention
to those who have abnormal examination result and

provide treatment advice.
Safety Production

The safety issue is highly concerned by the Group. The
Group has also cooperated with independent consulting
firm to ensure the production safety by establishing
GB/T 33000-2016 “Guideline of China Occupational
Safety and Health Management System”, and AQ/T9006-
2010 “Basic Norms for Work Safety Standardization
of enterprises” which in compliance with “Work Safety
Law of the PRC”. The mishandling of machinery in the
jewellery production may cause injuries. To safeguard
the workers, inspection on production facilities would
take place on regular basis to prevent the safety hazard.
The inspection includes the proper usage of safety
equipment aligning with safety production procedures,
and the cleanliness of the production facility. Any
hidden safety danger would be immediately treated by
the technical staff to protect the personal safety of the

workers.
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B3.

Fire Safety

The Group has also formulated fire safety system in
accordance with the “Fire Protection Law of the PRC”
and “Provisions on the Supervision and Administration
of Fire Protection of Construction Projects”. To raise
employees’ fire prevention awareness, fire drills are
conducted regularly and staff are instructed to the
correct use of fire extinguishers and the Group’s
fire evacuation plans are improved. In response to
emergencies, different places of the Group’s workplaces
are also equipped and clearly located with first aid kits

and fire extinguishers.
Other Health and Safety Measures

With the outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
(*COVID-19"), the Group is highly aware of its potential
health and safety impacts on employees. The Group
has strengthened its operating environmental hygiene
to ensure a healthy and safe working environment.
We have also taken precautionary measures, such as
performing temperature checks before entering retail
stores, offices and production facilities, and ensuring
that adequate disinfection supplies such as masks
and hand sanitiser are provided in our operations.
In addition, the production facility in Shenzhen has
followed the instructions of the government to resume
work gradually and implemented flexible working

arrangements.
Development and Training

The Group aims to build a strong sense of community
and a positive environment for its employees to enhance
employee loyalty and work dedication. The Group
believes that its ability to recruit and retain experienced
and skilled labour is key to growth and development.
The Group provides employee orientation to its new
employees to explain the Group’s internal rules and to
enhance employees’ safety awareness. The Group also

provides various types of employee training regularly.
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B4.

Training Management

The management formulates the Group’s annual
training proposal and conducts regular reviews on
the effectiveness of the training courses to improve
the quality of the training system. The Group provides
relevant on-the-job training for each employee to
facilitate their business abilities. For examples, the
salespersons in the retail shops would be trained
with the sales skills and etiquette with facing the
customers; the workers in the production facility would
be trained with the advanced skills. Through various
trainings, employees are able to strengthen related
professional knowledge, professions and management
skills. It benefits the Group by enhancing employees’
professional skills and attracting more talents. The
Group also provides subsidies, remuneration and
promotion incentives to encourage employees to

participate in external training courses.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, all employees of the
Group have attended trainings. The average training
hours for male and female were approximately 10 hours
and 12 hours respectively, in which employees with
managerial grade or above attained approximately 10
hours of trainings on average, while employees with
managerial grade or below attained approximately 12

hours of trainings on average.

The Group also recognises the importance of
occupational safety training to ensure employees’
personal safety. The relevant policies have been

described in details in Aspect B2 “Health and Safety”.
Labour Standards
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group complies with the “Labour Law of the PRC”,
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” of

PRC, and Hong Kong’s “Employment Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws
and regulations in relation to the prevention of child or

forced labour.
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The Group strictly prohibits the use of any child and
forced labour in the PRC and Hong Kong operations.
The Group demands all new employees to provide true
and accurate personal information when they join the
Group. The recruitment staff will stringently verify their
information, including body check results, academic
certificates, identity card and hometown information.
Regular reviews and checking are conducted to guard
against child or forced labour in the operations. The
Group also avoids using the supplies and services of
those suppliers and contractors with records of using
child or forced labour. Furthermore, employees work
overtime on a voluntary basis, and the Group promises
not to force employees to work overtime to prevent any
breach of labour standards. The Group also prohibits
any punishments, management methods and behaviours
involving verbal abuse, physical punishment, physical
abuse, oppression, sexual harassment, etc. against its

employees for any reason.
Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values the importance of potential
environmental and social risks management in its supply
chain. For the effective monitoring of procurement
procedures and cost control, increasing management
transparency in procurement, the Group has established
a stringent and standardised procurement system and a
systematic selection process for suppliers. For the year
ended 31 March 2023, the Group had approximately 20

suppliers, all of them were from the PRC.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group expects suppliers to fulfil the standards
in terms of environment, society and corporate
governance, commercial ethics and quality. The Group
selects suppliers that create positive influences on
environmental and social matters, the scopes of which
mainly includes operational compliance, employees’
safety and health, social responsibility, business ethics
and environmental protection. Since the Group does
not enter into long-term contracts with suppliers, it can
switch the suppliers flexibly. The Group will terminate
cooperation at instant with those suppliers who may
cause severe contamination or seriously social harms or
have caused material environmental or social incidents.
With the above assessment processes, the Group can
minimise potential environmental and social risks of

supply chain.
Fair and Open Procurement

The Group’s procurement procedures strictly abide by
the “Bidding Law of the PRC” and related regulations.
The Group makes procurement on an open, fair and
impartial basis without any discrimination against
any particular supplier nor corruption and bribery.
The Group sources the raw materials of diamonds,
gemstones and precious metals from suppliers at stable
and competitive market prices. The Group believes it
does not rely on any single supplier for sourcing any
raw material to material extent. In addition, the Group
forbids employees and any parties who are related
to the relevant supplier to take part in the subject
procurement. The Group stresses the integrity of its
suppliers, it only selects those with good business track
records and no material non-compliances or unethical

behaviours.
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Product Responsibility

The Group actively safeguards the quality of the
products with its internal control process. The Group
also maintains on-going communication with the
customers to ensure understanding and satisfaction
of their demands and expectations, and to improve its
service quality by learning their satisfactory rates. The
Group earnestly complies with laws and regulations
in relation to consumers’ rights such as the “General
Principles of the Civil Law of the PRC”, “Product Quality
Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests”, “Tort Law of the PRC”,
“Law of PRC on Imported and Exported Commodity
Inspection”, “Advertising Law of the PRC”, “Patent Law
of the PRC”, and Hong Kong’s “Personal Data (Privacy)

Ordinance” and “Trade Descriptions Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with any
laws and regulations in relation to privacy issues
and compensation regarding health and safety,
advertisement and labelling on products and service
provided. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
was not aware of any products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons, nor receiving

material complaints related to products and service.
Quality Assurance

The quality of the jewellery is one of the key factors
that customers highly concern. The Group has a quality
monitoring requirement and quality control inspection
before the delivery of the products. The Group has
set up a centralized Quality Control Team, which is
responsible for monitoring the entire production process.
The Group performs quality control in each stage,
ensuring the products are with satisfactory quality. We
would have overall inspection in the last stage to ensure
the product is made according to the specification
stated. The Group would also conduct random sample
checking by the experienced professionals on the
finished jewellery products to ensure that it is up to

standard.
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The quality of products is reliable and has been ensured
by different organisations. Hong Kong Jewellers’ and
Goldsmiths’ Association and The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association have recognised the quality of
our gold products with the “Quality Gold Mark”. Besides,
the Group is also recognized by the Quality Tourism
Services (“QTS”) Scheme of Hong Kong Tourism Board,
as the reliable retail store in Hong Kong. The products
are highly qualified to ensure customers would not
receive products that are substandard to safeguard the

consumers’ right.
Protection of IP Rights

The Group focuses on pioneer innovation in its own
jewellery design. The Group has sufficient and all-
rounded management system for IP. The Group
continuously strengthens the management of
trademark, domain right, designs and trade secrets
in the product development processes. The external
graphic designers, who outsourced for certain product
development stages, would be required to sign an
agreement to acknowledge that the designs produced
during the engagement are the IP of the Group. For
new employees, the Group focuses on training their
awareness of conserving trade secrets. The IP, which
mainly related to the trademark and designs, are well
protected by the Group and it values the intellectual

properties as the important assets of the Group.
Customer Services

The Group would provide after-sales service like
resizing of rings and complimentary cleaning services
to maintain a good relationship with customers. The
Group reviews all complaints from customers, suppliers
and partners in accordance with internal procedures
and guidelines, and appropriate follow-up measures
will be taken. If applicable, the Group will conduct
relevant investigations and generate case reports and
correcting action plans to resolve complaints and make
improvements accordingly. The Group believes that
complaints are good opportunities to get feedback
from the community and customers, so as to assure the

necessity of improving the services and policies.
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Advertising and Labelling

The Group has adopted a multi-channel advertising
strategy to promote the brand and improve the brand
image. The Group takes care of the advertisement and
labelling issues to ensure that only accurate products’
information would be published. Any misleading
message is prohibited for publishing after the strict

monitoring of the teams of professionals.
Protection of Privacy

The Group recognises the protection of customers’
and partners’ privacy is the key for success. Therefore,
protecting and maintaining customers’ privacy always
remain in the first priority of the Group. Security
measures have established to provide adequate
protection and encryption for all data and information
upon operation. At the same time, the Group has
implemented policies and procedures to the collection

and use of personal data.
Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is
the key to its continuous success. Therefore, the Group
stressed on anti-corruption work and system building,
devoted in creating a clean and transparent corporate
culture. It has already developed adequate codes and
provide anti-corruption trainings to ensure all employees
(including directors) adhered to the highest standards of
business, professional and ethical practices. The Group
strictly complies with the requirements under laws and
regulations such as the “Company Law of the PRC”,
“The Tendering and Bidding Law of the PRC”,
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery”, and Hong

“Interim

Kong’s “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”.

The Group’s major operation formulated such policies
on the control and prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering between shareholders and
related parties in each business operation and trade

activity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did
not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. There is no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Company or its employees during the year ended 31
March 2023.

Anti-bribery

The Group has an anti-bribery function, which is
responsible for developing the overall framework of anti-
bribery, fraud and corruption policies and procedures.
It also guides and monitors the implementation of such
policies and procedures in different aspects of the
Group’s operation. Each of the Group’s subsidiaries
will immediately report any suspected bribery, fraud
and corruption to the person in charge of the Group’s
internal control. The internal control advisor was
engaged to perform internal control review on the Group
and determine the appropriate course of actions if

necessary.

The Group fully complies with relevant anti-money
laundering laws. The Group minimises the risk
of establishing relationships with individuals or
organisations involved in money laundering or terrorist
activities through “understanding customers” and

assessment procedures.
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B8. Community Investment

The Group believes in shouldering the responsibility
of contributing society. As a responsible corporate
citizen, the Group has fulfilled our social responsibilities
by being committed to supporting various charitable
and community activities. The Group hopes to
foster employees’ sense of social responsibility,
thus encouraging them to participate in charitable
activities during their work and spare time to make
greater contributions to the community. The Group
has also encouraged its employees to participate in
environmental and charitable activities, make donations
to assist underprivileged students and engage in social
services. The Group believes that the participation in
activities that repay society can increase its employees’

civic awareness and establish their correct values.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has also joined different chambers of
commerce to support the charity activities. The Group
has become the members of Kowloon Chamber of
Commerce and New Territory Chamber of Commerce
and has supported many of the charity activities to
repay the community. Besides, the Group has also
donated to the Youth Outreach’s “YO! Let's Walk the
Road” to support the service provided by the Youth
Outreach on rescuing the teenagers who are in needs.
The Group will seek opportunities to identify more
suitable projects and contribute to the community and

environment to bring positive progress to society.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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BiE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

HTERER

wE

ERBAERZMERABAN(RE - #g
ERWMERESDARREIXR

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

—RIEERBRERIER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect A1: Emissions

EmEAT: Ry

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG

emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.

BRRER IR EREYM - MK R L

s BEMBEBERVNELSTN

(a) BE: K

(b) BEITHETABEATENMERER
KR OIEE RS -

Emissions

PERRY)

KPI'A1.1

RS AE UEIT A1

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

PERRY BB R AR AR -

Emissions — Emission Management,
Waste Management

PR — PR ERE C ERYER

KPI A1.2

BSRAEMIEIR A2

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.
RERBANE (AETE) REE -

Emissions — Emission Management

PEIRY) — B E 2

KPI' A1.3

RASR A HEIR A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.

MEXBEEEDRE(UEAE) REBE -

Emission — Waste Management
(not applicable — explained)
PRy — BEMER(TER — BBE)

KPI'A1.4

RASR AR MIEIR A4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.

FRELEEEEYES UAE)RBE -

Emissions — Waste Management

P — BEEYERE

KPI A1.5

BASENIEIRA1S

Description of emission targets set and
steps taken to achieve them.

BRI HFME B R REIEERF
FRERERE) P8R

Emissions — Emission Management,
Waste Management

B — SRR EE - ERDER

KPI A1.6

RARAEMIEIRAL1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled and a
description of reduction targets set and
steps taken to achieve them.

R BRIR A = REEERY L - Rt
FIZAYRRE B R MR E DS L B R PR

Emissions — Waste Management

BER) — BEEMER
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RIE -HEKRE

aHE

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BH - —RIEEXBERERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,

including energy, water and other raw

Use of Resources

RSB BIEIRA2.3

targets set and steps taken to achieve
them.

it EERE AN R B R R RERE LB IRA
PR 28R

materials.
— MR ER BRERER(BIERIR - KREMEME) | ERER
EIRER o
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources — Energy
consumption by type in total and Management
intensity.
BABRAE RURIR A2.1 RERISWERER SHEEREEER |ERER — LRERE
KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. | Use of Resources — Water Management
BRI IEIR A2.2 BREKEREE ° BRER — KERERE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Use of Resources — Energy

Management

BRER — gelRER

KPI A2.4

BSREBIEIR A2 4

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency targets set and steps
taken to achieve them.

R AUSKEGE B 7KR R B E A R - LARPR
FI I ARG B IR R A ERE L B R PTER
BHEY B ©

Use of Resources — Water Management

BRER — KERER

KPI' A2.5

BRAEMIEIRA2.5

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.

R mARBEMHNAE (AEE) R E
HEBMLRE -

Use of Resources — Use of Packaging

Materials

BRER — BEMEHER
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TERER

wE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs

—RILERBERERIER

Description

t:pu

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHA3 : RERRRER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment

and natural resources.

The Environment and Natural Resources

— MR BRAIREHDERAARGHBETAEETE |RIEZFENEEE -
HNERRIEIEBEE
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of | The Environment and Natural Resources

RSB BRI A3 A

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

R EBESHRTRRNERNEAZE
MERRERFATENTY -

— Working Environment

BERRRER — TERIR

Aspect A4: Climate Change
EHE A4 : RixB1{L

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may

impact, the issuer.

Climate Change Impacts

— AR ER BRI REHDE MR EHETAELTE | RIRE(LTE
BERRIRIEEFERBE -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- Climate Change Impacts

RS AE MUEIR A4

related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
BN ARG HETAEETYENEXR
RIRIERASE - REHTE -

ARBCYE
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RIE -HEKRE

aHE

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BH - —RIEEXBERERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : Ef#E

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, antidiscrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

ERFMHERE  BEREA - TERE -

BE - 2k - FERE  REBARHA

B LM

(a) BX: &

(b) BEITHETABERTENHERER
KR OIEERL -

Employment

ER

KPI B1.1

RASEAEMHE1R B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region.

IR - EBIEER - Fhodn RibRE D
EEMHEE -

Employment

ER

KPI B1.2

RS E RIS B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age

group and geographical region.

RIER - FERAR RIE BN MERRKL

Employment

B
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RIE -HE8KRE

B E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

BH - —RIXERBARERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EHEB2: RERAZE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  Anti-corruption compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety

— AR ER ERRML2TIHERERREREEBERE BRELS
HrEE
(a) BE: R
(b) ETHBITABERPZENEBEE
KRB E RS
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities | Health and Safety

RS AE SR B2.1

occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.
BEIF(REERFE)FFETEBERM
FAS:0UN 9535 43

[EAE R

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RABRE IR B2.2 ETEEATIERSE - ERETE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Health and Safety

RSB MIERE B2.3

safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
RPN B R R 210 - AR
BT RERAE -
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HTERER

HE

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

H - —REBFRERARER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

EmB3 : H#EREZI

Aspect B3: Development and Training

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work. Description of training activities.

Development and Training

BB ISR B3

by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
RUERILEEEN(INERERE - PRE
BEZ)EINTIEETL

— R H ABIRTHE BRI TIEBE AR R | SRR
SR o fHEHIES -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training

KPI B3.2

BASEAEMIEIR B3.2

The average training hours completed

per employee by gender and employee

category.

RIERI R EEERE D
HFH R 8L o

C BREE TR

/

Development and Training

R A

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EmEB4 : & T%H

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

Labour Standards

RASE A MHE1T B4

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

i & 1R R A8 ) O HE bt DA S 2 T s ol
BT o

labour.
— AR ER BRAPT IEE T ekaa )45 T ¢ 25 TR
(a) BX: &
(b) BETHETABERTENEBER
KRB EHL
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards

& TR

KPI B4.2

FASRIENIEIE B4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.

fie s A2 35 BE AR B UL HER B B B L P ERER
R o

Labour Standards

T2
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B E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

BH - —RIXERBARERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EmEB5 : fEEERE

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and

social risks of the supply chain.

Supply Chain Management

— AR ER ERHERENRIE R G R - e
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management

RS 45 51T B5.1

region.

mEE D HEREE -

MR E

KPI B5.2

BSR4 51 B5.2

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

i B BRI R EIE D] - mEHITHRE
BHIHEREE - ARBBEEMNORTR
BERTIE -

Supply Chain Management

AR E e

KPI B5.3

BS A MIE1E B5.3

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along

the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B R R RS ERENRIERTE
BV EH - ARMBRIIT RER A -

Supply Chain Management

it gt

KPI B5.4

RASE 45 M 515 B5.4

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products

and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.
RMEBRGE R R R 2 ARRE @ MR
EEED - U RBBERITRERITE -

Supply Chain Management

Hreges
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BH - —RIEEXBERERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

Product Responsibility

BASEAE 51 B6.1

shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.

CEACEXERmBET AR 2 BEREH
mZE B A B S L o

— MR ER FHFRHEERNRBOEREZS  E |ExiAE
& BEEELEBEEA RS E
(a) BE: R
(b) ETHBITABEAZENEBEE
FRBIEE R
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Product Responsibility

ht

EmafE

KPI B6.2

RASE A 51 B6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

BRI E M MR E B A R EH T
& e

Product Responsibility

oh

EmEE

KPI B6.3

BSAE IS B6.3

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

fie it B A T RIS A E R B RIS -

Product Responsibility

EmAL

KPI B6.4

BASRAE MRS B6.4

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
fii it & BT B2 R E m AL -

Product Responsibility

EmAL

KPI B6.5

FASERUEIRE B6.5

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

it B & B RHMRIE RALRBUR - LA RABRE
MITRERFE -

Product Responsibility

t
Bo
it
m
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RIE -HE8KRE

B E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

BH - —RIXERBARERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EmB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

Anti-corruption

— MR BRAPIIEHRER - B - BGF RO RN R&=
(a) BE: R
(b) ETHBITABERPZENEBEE
KRB E RS
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption

RS A 51T B7 .1

regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHETAIHESRLIEERS
MBS FARMHIEIE RFARER -

KPI B7.2

BSAEMIERE BT.2

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

e S e R R EAE - A RMEBEIAT R
BRIIE ©

Anti-corruption

REF

KPI B7.3

BARENIEIEB7.3

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
fmEERE TRRHENHREFE -

Development and Training

R LT
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BH - —RIEEXBERERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEB8 : HERE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

Community Investment

RASE A 515 B8 1

education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
IERER (KNG BRFE HI1H
kR e BBE) e

— MR R R2EREREEMNEHRBFEN |HERE
BREEBZDHEEBIHERMEZOEE
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Community Investment

HEEE

KPI B8.2

RS AE 515 B8 2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.
EFIHREMBAER(NSENEFRH) ©

Community Investment

HERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHERE

Q Grant Thornton
2]

Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 107 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

FABKESEEZERARDH
(REASHBEMRINARQE)
ERRR

=R

ZEEEFHRFE107Z 211 BAEKREEE
BRERARI([EARD REMBAR (FHE &S
B ) eire Mm% - 2N 202363 A31H
WERE BRI RERBEZA LFENGRERE
ahHEMEERER  RERaEHRRGEHE
SRERX  LRLEAMBIRENTE - RiEERE
FTECRIEE o

EEAR  SRUBHRREREBETESHNAE
(IBAEGFEAE]) BN ELMBERELER

=
([BEUBMELEDNEEMATHRET
SEMR 202343 A31 AWiRE BRI LEE
ZHIEFENGENBRBRGEESRE - 1T
BERE BN AHEDIZ A%HE -

<

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

8



100

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHERE

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter

ARETEE
Valuation of inventories
Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial

Statements

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$58,984,000, net of provision for inventories of
HK$4,261,000, representing approximately 46% of the

Group’s total assets.

ERER

EEERBEBEE S ASRMOBTEE LR
(IHFBBFEA D ETET - BEFEXFER
THRENEFCEARSZUERETZEH
BHRJAENRE IO FEE TR - RIE
ARG ASBRMNEXSFRERTA( T
A1) FFBIURN BEE - XCETTARH
HiEREREE - EFHE  SEMESHE
FHREREAD MEBEMAESNETEREHRE

it o

REESEE

BRETFHEERBEESNHEEHE - BEEAN
HEAMBREANEITR/ERNER - FLF
HAREBSEITBRFAMBHRREAZRR
ETRIEN - B M2 HELEREREBENE
B e

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EENETNAREEEREEE

FEIEE

BRAFEBHREMNF38 4K 18

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of
inventories included the following:

EEEMEEHENEREFEE

e obtained an understanding of the Group’s process and

R 202343 A31H ' 7 &/ BEHEE &58,984,000% 7t (0

control over the valuation of inventories;

T BEREHEFE[ENEFRIES

MIFEREE 4,261,000870) ' h EEEREEL46% °

e understood how management identifies slow-moving

inventories and management’s process in monitoring

the quality of work of the independent professional

gemologist appointed;

THREEBMABNFHEERBERTZSE  URE
BEEEREREBIEXENEEMIEFERNER

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHERE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EENESTNARERRESEE

FEEE — &
R BREN 38 4% 18

Key audit matter

BRETEE

Valuation of inventories (Continued)

Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial

Statements

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the amount of provision
on inventories, it is the Group’s policy to review the
net realisable values of inventories periodically with
reference to current market condition and the historical
experience in selling goods of similar nature. The
Group’s management reviewed, on a regular basis, the
suitability of its inventory provision policy and has applied
the policy consistently. The Group’s management also
reviewed, on a regular basis, the inventory ageing list to
identify any slow-moving inventories and estimated the
amount of provision primarily based on the pricing policy
and strategies and the historical experience in selling
goods of similar nature. The Group also engaged an
independent professional gemologist to perform valuation
and assess the conditions of certain items based on
gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery products with
reference to international diamond prices, its expertise

and the current market situation.

HINREMBRRME4AEE  AEAFERENS -
BEEENBRRZRABTANEEHERUNERNBE
RELAEHRNFEANERFE - SERETEETHR
HEEREBHRENHEE YEL BERBMEEX - =
SEEEENEHREEKBE  HARNEMFHEGFE XX
ERFEERR RRBAKBEHEEERUERERMERT
BESE - 1 BERETZBBYEXEIREE T AL
ThE - Y2RERELER EEXMBLBAETR 8
KREEREMHNEOQAFRETHENTIZE T FEENMNR -

Accordingly, we identified the valuation of inventories as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with the judgments associated with determining the amount

of provision on inventories.

At - EREHRE GV BERRNEBEREUNEEFE
BETENERAE  FENGERESBRESEE -

assessed the appropriateness of provision on
inventories made by management and the accuracy of
the net realisable values by comparing the subsequent
selling prices of similar products less estimated costs
to be incurred for completion and disposal, to their

carrying amounts on a sample basis;

AHEEEEMEFERENEENL - WEBKEREL
EmrHEERRMAT TR EBEEN SR AEERR
EEFL LB - R E o] SRR E R R

evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent professional gemologist and
obtained an understanding of the scope of work and

the terms of engagement;

AEBUEXEAETMANER eI RFELE X7
RETHEREREENRBHER

understood the valuation process carried out by the
independent professional gemologist on selected
jewellery items and checked the carrying amounts
of selected jewellery items to the jewellery appraisal
report to test that these items were recorded at lower

of cost and net realisable value;

THRBN BEE A ETERMEEERE E e TR AERE
Fo iR E RS e e R E AR B (AR H®TTX
¥ BURIR %S E iR AR R AT #BUFEME HARE
PN
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B &R RS

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HREEEE EENFTNAEETREE

e attended the annual physical inventory count at
year end date with assistance of an independent
professional gemologist engaged by us to compare
the net realisable values of selected jewellery items

held by the Group with their costs;

ERBMEROBISLEESROBH T - RELR
SREEENEREY  RTBAEERANETHE
07T P AR AL 8

e checked the accuracy of the inventory ageing list, on
a sample basis, by tracing to the invoices and delivery

documents; and

BRBEEZRIMN XM MERETE R A LERE
[N

e assessed the reasonableness of the provision on
identified slow-moving non-diamond gem-set jewellery
products by checking the ageing profile, historical
sales pattern and the subsequent sales of these

inventories.

BERRETBMAR  BEHERARERZSEFENH
& AR AR AR HENIFEOERBRIREER °
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V% BB R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the 2022/2023
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
V% BBl R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagements and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHERE

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHERE

From the matter communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
is therefore the key audit matter. We describe this matter in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11" Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

23 June 2023

Lam Wai Ping
Practising Certificate No.: P07826

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEERkEMEZEINER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # %= 20234 3 A 31 H L F &

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 %
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hat FAET FET
Revenue Iy &5 5 136,822 107,344
Cost of goods sold B& R mA A (104,718) (78,190)
Gross profit ER 32,104 29,154
Other income E bl A 6 2,296 1,005
Other gains/(losses), net Hiblezs /(&1 ) F8E 7 87 (1,807)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHA AR (19,781) (21,308)
General and administrative —RRATE R X
expenses (15,867) (14,719)
Finance costs B 75 B 2R 8 (1,219) (1,126)
Share of losses of associates e HE &8 A B 2 518 (197) (264)
Loss before income tax MRBiATES 18 9 (2,577) (9,065)
Income tax credit Frigfif e 12 686 1,382
Loss for the year FREE (1,891) (7,683)
Other comprehensive FREMEE
(expense)/income for the year (Bx), Wz
Item that may be reclassified HEZFGEEN S
subsequently to profit or loss: BamhyEE
Exchange difference arising on HE N S 75 B A O BE
translation of a foreign operation =7 (638) 385
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FREMEE(FES) M
income for the year, net of income MBRATSH 1R
tax (638) 385
Total comprehensive expense for FREZHEAXELE
the year (2,529) (7,298)
Loss per share BRER 10
Basic and diluted (HK cents) ER R #E (BIL) (0.25) (1.02)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R R

As at 31 March 2023 720234 3 A 31H

2023 2022
2023 2022 fF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NRE 14 15,934 20,581
Interests in associates REFE AT Z RS 15 17,424 8,721
Deferred tax assets EEBIBEE 17 5,733 5,047
Other receivables H b e Y k08 19 2,261 2,028
41,352 36,377
Current assets nEBEE
Inventories & 18 58,984 59,634
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H Ab e GR IR 19 4,202 3,559
Financial assets at fair value BAFERF AR
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") HeaEE 16 3,066 9,026
Bank balances and cash RITHEBER S 20 20,657 20,572
86,909 92,791
Current liabilities nEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 RE A ERFRIE 21 6,491 6,142
Contract liabilities ABHEE 22 4,902 4,395
Refund liabilities BRAE 23 463 388
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 7,732 7,372
Amount due to controlling FE A 152 AR AR 3R 3R I8
shareholder 25 5,000 -
Bank borrowings RITER 26 28,856 28,295
53,444 46,592
Net current assets REBEERE 33,465 46,199
Total assets less current liabilities BEEAERRBERS 74,817 82,576
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 4,456 9,626
Net assets EEFE 70,361 72,950

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A BB R R

As at 31 March 2023 7 20234 3 A 31 H

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET

Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital f& 7N 27 7,500 7,500
Reserves & 62,861 65,450
Total equity fERBE 70,361 72,950

Fu Chun Keung
R

Director

EZE

Cheung Lai Yuk
REE
Director

EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmSBR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

Shares
held for
the Share
Share Share Award Other Exchange Retained
capital premium* Scheme* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
AR D
®E
T EEE
BE  ROEE ZR  HitRE EXREE RKREEFR mE
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000
FET FHET FHET TFHET FET FET FET
(note 29) (note)
(Mt 29) (Ktat)
As at 1 April 2021 R2021464A1H 7,500 35,242 - 20,489 (1,553) 19,263 80,941
Purchase of shares RAR R 2@ =T 81 RS
for the Share Award NG
Scheme - - (693) - - - (693)
Transaction with owners E#H AETHR S = = (693) - - - (693)
Loss for the year FNEE - - - - - (7,683) (7,683)
Exchange difference BEINBEEBEEN
arising from EHERE
translation of a
foreign operation = = = = 385 = 385
Total comprehensive FRNEERYBE
expense for the year - - - - 385 (7,683) (7,298)
As at 31 March 2022 R202263A31 B R
and 1 April 2022 20224 A1H 7,500 35,242 (693) 20,489 (1,168) 11,580 72,950
Purchase of shares RARAR D 2@ =t
for the Share Award ARk
Scheme - - (60) - - - (60)
Transaction with owners E#H AETHR S = = (60) - - - (60)
Loss for the year FREE — — - - - (1,891)  (1,891)
Exchange difference BEINBEEBEEN
arising from EHERE
translation of a
foreign operation - - - - (638) - (638)
Total comprehensive FRNEERYBE
expense for the year - - - - (638) (1,891) (2,529)
As at 31 March 2023 R 202343 A31H 7,500 35,242 (753) 20,489 (1,806) 9,689 70,361
* The reserves accounts comprise the Group's reserves of * REHERBEAEENGS HEAR TR DA

HK$62,861,000 (2022: HK$65,450,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Note: Other reserve represents the difference between paid-in capital and

issued share capital of the Company arising from group reorganisation.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GSERITMER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

2023 2022
PIPEE:S 2022 F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HteE FHET FAET
Cash flows from operating RETHFEENRESRE
activities
Loss before income tax K i Al S 1B (2,577) (9,065)
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation on property, plant and %% - BERREITE
equipment 14 9,339 11,030
Write-down of inventories to net BEEHRE A 2R FE
realisable value 18 430 357
Provision for/(Reversal of provision Z SRR ETEREEEE
for) expected credit losses (“ECL”) %45, /(#&m)
allowance for trade receivables 19 1 (29)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial BAFEFABZNEHE
assets at FVTPL, net ENATE(RE), BB
et 7 (2,098) 2,305
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of financial HERAFEFABRENE
assets at FVTPL MEEMNER (fs) 7 2,040 (427)
Net loss on written-off of property, MHTIZE - BB K&
plant and equipment FEE 7 31 =
Covid-19 related rent concessions B 42019 # & 5E AR R = A AE
received PSR % 9 (176) (156)
Interest expenses AEFRX 8 1,219 1,126
Interest and dividend income B R B U A (572) (859)
Share of losses of associates FEfRE & QA 2 BB 197 264
Unrealised foreign exchange SRR B R PR
realignment (591) 338
Operating cash flows before working #EB& &EBALER S
capital changes mE 7,253 4,884
Decrease in financial assets at BRATE ABENE R
FVTPL BERD 1,018 610
Decrease in inventories FER D 220 1,577
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and B 5 & H fth FE U ZRIE
other receivables (&), m (887) 1,704
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and B 5 R EAERNRIA
other payables #in, Crd) 349 (1,682)
Increase/(Decrease) in contract AHaERM CRd)
liabilities 507 (345)
Increase/(Decrease) in refund KA B ORd)
liabilities 75 (167)
Cash generated from operations EEEANERS 8,535 6,581
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund B BB TR - 302
Net cash generated from operating K& EBHELRIRES FEE
activities 8,535 6,883
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HteE FET FET
Cash flows from investing BRETHRERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BEKEHE
equipment (1,159) (4,082)
Prepayments of property, plant and  #1% - = L&RE 2 AR
equipment IE - (184)
Redemption of financial asset at B e A EF ABEA
FVTPL SREE 5,000 -
Investment in an associate "E—HBERA 25 (3,900) -
Interest and dividend received B B R E 572 859
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEBEE,(FTH)HE
investing activities S F5E 513 (3,407)
Cash flows from financing AEEHRERE
activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITfE RTS8 32 6,000 2,570
Repayments of bank borrowings BEBITER 32 (5,439) (5,599)
Purchase of shares for the Share R IR D 2B &t 2l
Award Scheme EYNEh) 29 (60) (693)
Payment of lease liabilities HEHEMNTRK 32 (8,198) (10,079)
Interests paid BEFE 8 (1,219) (1,126)
Net cash used in financing activities B&E/EBFFARIRE F58 (8,916) (14,927)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeERRESSEYEM
and cash equivalents (m2) 5 132 (11,451)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FReRREEEY
beginning of the year 20,572 32,021
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNETE R B Eh B
changes (47) 2
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESRASEEY
the end of the year 20 20,657 20,572

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a
public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 11 January 2018 and its shares are listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman lIslands and the principal place of business of
the Company is at No. 6-13 Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road,

Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company is Mythe Group Holdings Company
Limited (“Mythe”) which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Fu Chun
Keung (“Mr. Fu”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 23 June 2023.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual period

beginning on 1 April 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following amended HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which
are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual

period beginning on 1 April 2022:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

Merger Accounting for Common

Control Combination

The adoption of the amended HKFRSs had no material impact
on how the results and financial position of the Group for the

current and prior periods have been prepared and presented.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RN

For the year ended 31 March 2023 A& ZE 202343 A 31 B ILFfE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

— continued
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been

adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts and
related amendments'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5°

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting

Policies'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction'

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs — continued

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are expected
to have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is provided
below. Other new and amended HKFRSs are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs — continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information instead of significant
accounting policies in its financial statements. The
amendments also provide some guidance on how material
policy information are being identified and provide some

examples of when accounting policy information is likely to be

BRAHAT RS T B A RS
AU EBAREER ) — &

ERMEHRERZEBUBREER —

-
G

BEEBEEAEI1RNREBYBHEER
EBBHE2 S (1577 FK) Eaf HEHE

FEGENS1RBIN)AEERE
REBBERRPEEEANG T BRERN
FEESFTBR o BRI AT AR E
RBRERREHRE TSI TR AIFAS
BERERMARAIEERE K ©

material.
In March 2021, HKICPA issued HKFRS Practice Statement 2 RZZE=Z—F=1 BBGRMLSRM
“Making Materiality Judgments” to provide entities with non- BRI E L ERREFE 250 [1ELEA

mandatory guidance on how to make materiality judgments
when preparing their general purpose financial statements in
accordance with HKFRSs. HKFRS Practice Statement 2 was
subsequently revised to provide guidance and examples on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy

disclosures.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
are applied prospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
Except for the disclosures of accounting policies in note
3 to the consolidated financial statements may need to be
revised to cope with the above changes, the directors expect
that the amendments have no other material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

BHEZM 2 HE ] ERREEEWH®R
SRAGRBAVERRFOAFELER
A S ERIRHIFRBIES - BEUB

HERNEBGRAE 2REHEEETER
FhAN{RT 7 B2 2 ME A P PR T & R R BR AR BR
RftEsIROIF -

FEGENE1IREBINIR=_F_=
F-A—RHZRAR 2 FERSHEE
WA AEHER - BAFFIRAER - BREx
B BHRMEIN ST ERKEATES
TEFTAIRRE Dt &8 2 5 EEEBIE
RIAHEAMBHRAMELMEAYE -

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

117



118

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation and presentation

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
collective term includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new and
amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed

in note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
assets at FVTPL (see note 3.6) that are measured
at fair values at the end of the reporting period.
The measurement bases are fully described in the

accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgment of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the

Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of
intra-group asset are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting

policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B 5 R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.2

Basis of consolidation — continued

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the

subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of

investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends whether
received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition

profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.3

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control of those

policies.

In consolidated financial statements, investments
in associates are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed
for impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable

to the investment.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate
for the year, including any impairment loss on the

investment in associate recognised for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.3

Associates — continued

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Where unrealised
losses on assets sales between the Group and its
associate are reversed on equity accounting, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from
the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group
when the associate’s financial statements are used by
the Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in associates equal or
exceed its interests in the associates, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s

net investment in the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 R 3R M A

mE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.3

Associates — continued

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in associate is impaired. If such
indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between
the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate and its
carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate, including cash flows arising
from the operations of the associate and the proceeds

on ultimate disposal of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from
the date when it ceases to have significant influence
over an associate. The difference between (i) the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate; and (ii) the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the equity
method was discontinued, is recognised in the profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.4

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange

rates at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates
at the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in

equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 3.16), if any. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment (other than right-
of-use assets) comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use. The cost of right-
of-use assets are determined in accordance with note
3.11.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
or 25% per annum,

whichever is the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 30%

Machinery 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Accounting policy for depreciation of right-of-use assets

is set out in note 3.11.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.6

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,

cancelled or expires.
Financial assets
Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at
the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”),
all financial assets are initially measured at fair value, in
case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets

carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified into amortised cost or
FVTPL.

The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the

financial asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance costs, general and administrative expenses,

other income or other gains/(losses), net.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 R 3R M A

mE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect

its contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in “Other income”
in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect

of discounting is immaterial.

The Group’s bank balances and cash and trade and
other receivables fall into this category of financial

instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Subsequent measurement of financial assets —

continued
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Dividends from
investments in equity securities are recognised in profit

or loss as “Other income”.
Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings,
lease liabilities, trade and other payables and amount
due to controlling shareholder. They are separately
shown on the face of the consolidate statement of

financial position.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable,
adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group
designated a financial liability at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities — continued

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities —

continued

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method except for derivatives which
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships and financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with

gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes
in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or

loss are included within finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note
3.11.

Bank borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

date.

Trade and other payables and amount due to controlling

shareholder

They are recognised initially at their fair values and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e UK

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.7 Impairment of financial assets

The impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) use forward-looking
information to recognise ECL - the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other

debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost

and trade receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the

current conditions at the reporting date as well as the

forecast of future conditions.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction

is made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial

recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”);

and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial

recognition and whose credit risk is not low

(“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have

objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category

while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2

category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-

weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life

of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued
Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date.
These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash
flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating the
ECL, the Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience and
external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been

grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s

trade receivables are assessed as a separate

group);
. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increase in
the likelihood of risk of default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e UK

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.7 Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
assets at the reporting date with the risk of default
occurring on the financial assets at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical

experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

= significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase

in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices

for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected

to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’'s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
end of each reporting period. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if it has a low risk of
default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally

understood definition.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when there is a
breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
when (i) information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by the

Group) or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at

amortised cost are set out in note 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.8

3.9

3.10

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average method for gold jewellery products and specific
identification basis for other jewellery products. Net
realisable values represent the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion

and costs necessary to make the sale.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.11 Leases

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as
“a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right
to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration”. To apply
this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract

meets three key evaluations which are whether:

o the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time

the asset is made available to the Group;

o the Group has the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract;

and

o the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct
‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used

throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease and non-lease component on the basis of

their relative stand-alone prices.

3.

FTESTHER — &

3.11 8

HEHEZRFEBEREMEA

RERMARE  AREEERAH
~EEEEXEEHE - HEESR
RIETR-—BREEAERZBNE
EREEE) R AR EN
—HENHEHN—FD] - BER
ZEE ARBFEEHESORS
A=A EE - B

s  AATHATRHEERHASE
ERRERANREEEE A
BERHEE :

s RERENBHATHEAN
BHR  AEBREAERNE
£ A B E (A B e nl B
MEGBARD LB R

s AKEREECEAHHEIER
BIETCRANEENER - A
SEEEENEEERAHRE
ERERETREENERT
WS P

SESHERD K —HRZAEIN
HEXFHERINA/DMS -
SESANRENEESZHERND
MIFMERD  WRZEH DR
R ERSEEETHR

H

o

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

135



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e UK

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.11 Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The right-
of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of
the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial
direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset at
the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in

advance of the lease commencement date (net of any

lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-

use asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily

determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate

(“IBR”).

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable payments based on an index or

rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a

residual value guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.11 Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced for lease payments made and increased for
interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured to
reflect any lease modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expense in profit or loss in the period on
which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of modification. The
only exception is any rent concessions which arose
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change

in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit
or loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to

zZero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of

12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.11

Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
right-of-use assets have been included in “property,

plant and equipment”.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included

in the cost of right-of-use assets.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of

the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and

adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.13

3.14

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity attributable
to the equity holders. The amount of the share capital
recognised is determined using the nominal value and
any related transaction costs are deducted from the

share premium.
Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of jewellery

products.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group

follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer
2. Identifying the performance obligations
8. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance

obligations

5} Recognising revenue when/as performance

obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts

collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or

services to its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.14 Revenue recognition — continued

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances

an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the

Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time

when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

or service.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

Sales of jewellery products

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

jewellery products are delivered to the customers and

the respective control has been passed.

Provision of jewelcrafting services

The revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

jewelcrafting services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B 75 ¥ R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.14

3.15

Revenue recognition — continued
Refund liabilities

The Group would estimate the sales return at the time
of sale at a portfolio level (expected value method)
based on its historical experience and recognise a
refund liability if the Group expects to refund some or
all of the consideration received from customers. When
customers exercise their right to recover the product,
the Group recognised “Right of return assets” included
in “Trade and other receivables” and a corresponding

adjustment to cost of goods sold.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying

amount of the asset.
Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented

in gross under “Other income” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

3. FEETEE—

3.14

3.15

W R — &
BHER

ERAAEHHEER  AKEEEHR
REBERRMGEFHERE(BHE
BE)  WMAREEH RO DX
2HWATFERNNKE - E‘J/\EEW
BRREE BRXPITREMAMAEEE
mEVERIE - AEBERE S KE
RSB R REEEE | R0
EERMmAAERBERE -

BREYA
Pl 2 U FE B AN R Y R i E B

7
o ©

FIE LA

M S A T 12 B T ) A B R ) =
EHER - HRYEBEREEREN
BEXAGHENEREENS B
BRI ZERNEENEIRE T

BUF# B

B0 S BRBEITE THMBNEA
W ER J 7K £5 [ 14 38 <F BT A 85 16k 44
B BIAMOSEAFERR K
FHEPEELEAR  YREKBTRE
Eﬁ;ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁaéﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@
RIS NIEE R HER °

HERABBAOBAMEPRGZES B
REMPEEERAIEMKRA IR
TIAREREDR ©

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

141



142

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.16 Impairment on non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets), interests in associates and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are subject to impairment

testing.

All assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be

recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of

time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.16

3.17

3.18

Impairment on non-financial assets — continued

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units
is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating
units, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of

disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss

had been recognised.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to government-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
which are defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the

inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries) after deducting

any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I 75 8 & MY &

mE R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.19

3.20

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.
Taxation
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense

in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax

losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.20 Taxation — continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor

accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income

or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued
3.20 Taxation — continued

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;

and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:
(i) the same taxable entity; or

(if)y  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.

3.21 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the

Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued
3.21 Related parties — continued

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the

same group.

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures

of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities,

are described below.
Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable values of inventories are based on
estimated selling prices less any estimation costs to be
incurred for completion and disposal. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical

experience in selling goods of similar nature.

The Group’s management reviewed, on a regular basis, the
suitability of its inventory provision policy and has applied the
policy consistently. The Group’s management also reviewed,
on a regular basis, the inventory ageing list to identify
any slow-moving inventories and estimated the amount of
provision primarily based on the pricing policy and strategies
and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. The Group also engaged an independent professional
gemologist to perform valuation and assess the conditions of
certain items based on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery
products with reference to international diamond prices, its

expertise and the current market situation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued
Valuation of inventories — continued

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$58,984,000, net of provision for inventories of
HK$4,261,000 (2022: HK$59,634,000, net of provision for
inventories of HK$3,831,000).

Leases — Estimation of IBR

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, therefore, it uses its IBR to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables
within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL
(including trade and other receivables) based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period as set
out in note 3.7. As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of
trade and other receivables within the scope of ECL under
HKFRS 9 amounting to HK$5,203,000, net of ECL allowance
of HK$32,000 (2022: HK$4,742,000, net of ECL allowance of
HK$21,000).

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9 and
credit losses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued

Estimation of fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

As at 31 March 2022, unlisted equity investment classified
as financial assets at FVTPL that is not traded in an active
market and was carried at fair value of HK$5,000,000. The
fair value is determined based on valuation performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer, details of which
are set out in note 36. This involves developing estimates
and assumptions consistent with how market participants
would price the instrument. The Group bases its assumptions
on observable data as far as possible but this is not always
available. In that case the Group uses the best information
available. Estimated fair value may vary from the actual price
that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the

reporting date.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

(including right-of-use assets)

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying amount of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the

impairment test.
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FRASR, R AT E RORE (I ) P Bk - RE
EEERBRER - ARBEZAEDLHE R
b5t LERBERE : (N)REEEMHEH#
EREEAERAETEEEEE: )&
ERREER T B HA AT 4 B & 58 (40 & 2
EBE)XF - MRBHECAEEMBTNR
KESREMNFRE : & (3) BRANEET
AREEENEZEHERER(EREASRE
FRREENMIRE) - EEAMGFHERNE
E(BREREEE) WA KESERE - K
SERGEFEEMBRSELEMATRE
8 - BREGEFH(BEASRER T
BRI IR R ) & H) ] g BB E RIS A
FREEKEATE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

(including right-of-use assets) — continued

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) was
HK$15,934,000 (2022: HK$20,581,000) (note 14). No
impairment loss has been recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) (2022: Nil)

at the reporting date.
Income tax and deferred taxation

As detailed in note 12, the Group is subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax. Significant judgment is required in determining
the amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the period in which such estimate is changed. The

outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets was HK$5,733,000 (2022: HK$5,047,000) (note 17).

HFFFTREMNETERR — &

M¥E - BERREBUAREAEEENMG
HE — &

MR2023F3A31H W% ME K&
NR(BECAEEE)NEREESD IR
15,934,000 7T (2022 £ : 20,581,000 8
T E14) - RREBH - HERD
¥ BERIECECHAEEE)ERR
EEE(20224F « 4) »

Frig B RIBEAET B

MR 12 FrRfal - REBAEMMEE G
B BERBEBRBESELEBRENH
BRERAEHERHE - RATEKBRE
T BRZHENEERKRBENR S KT
HE - MEZEEFENRETNBHERER
VRENSBTR  FREZERETEE
A BERIE BRI RO TS Bt SR FETR TR R A o

fied ' 22 JE 8 2 Bl 1% P BE 7B B AR A3 e A1) PR 1
HHEREZR  RIeRIBEHE TERE
HORERIBEE - MABEZI[ET
Rl AIEBEE=REFERATENHRENE
RHRBEENMBHRANER - BERSHA
MERTBERBAMTR °

20233 A31H BELEHEBEEEMNERMA
8 /5,733,000 jT (2022 4 : 5,047,000
B7e) (MizE17) °
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152

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents amounts received and receivable for the

sales of jewellery products during the year.

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, regularly review revenue analysis
by nature of business (including jewellery business and
trading of recycled gold products), and by jewellery
products (including gem-set jewellery products (representing
diamond/karat gold/jade/pearl/platinum jewellery products
and provision of jewelcrafting services) and gold jewellery
products). The executive directors of the Company
considered the operating activities of sales of these products
as a single operating segment. The operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform to
HKFRSs, and is regularly reviewed by the executive directors
of the Company. The executive directors of the Company
review the overall results, assets and liabilities of the Group
as a whole to make decisions about resources allocation.
Accordingly, no analysis of this single operating segment is

presented.
Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from contract with

customers is as follows:

Wk o EHBER
Wt FARBEmMHE D WL EIREEE -

RABATER(BETELEREE)ESR
EHREFBHE (RRREXELOKRES
EnBEZ)IEREER(BRELBERIRK
BERNER K HR Bk A
KREEREKRENTRE) ARESREE
) B DRSS - NRABHITESRZ
FERHERELRDRE—KRENH - K
EOMEREREBVBHREENN S
BRBEAREERENEEZR - LA
ARBMITESTEHNERN - ARRMITE
EEMASERBINEBREES BER
BEUMEHEBERDEHIRE At -

BE2ZE—KLED AT °

t

BERHER
AEBEZPEHBASITNT

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Jewellery business: RE T -

— Retail operation of jewellery shops - BEBEETEED 103,793 78,010

— Wholesales of jewellery products - REEMALE
(note) (HiaE) 11,314 11,214
115,107 89,224
Trading of recycled gold products BRESERE S 21,715 18,120
Total st 136,822 107,344

Note: Wholesales of jewellery products represent revenue from
jewellery trading and provision of jewelcrafting services to the
wholesalers.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Hit : REEMBEWRERAREE S RAMERHRE
HIRE N T ARG FREE £ RO U 23 ©
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e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 A& ZE 202343 A 31 B ILFfE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION — 5. WaRAHER — &

continued

Entity-wide information — continued

EREREs — &

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Jewellery business by product: BEMSIDIKREFER :
— Gem-set jewellery products - BELERKEER 60,609 51,794
- Gold jewellery products - B2 HEEM 54,498 37,430
115,107 89,224
Trading of recycled gold products Bl = EME 21,715 18,120
Total #Et 136,822 107,344

The Group is engaged in the retail of its own products
through its retail stores in Hong Kong. Wholesales of jewellery
products represent sales to jewellery retailers with stores and
provision of jewelcrafting services to the wholesalers. The
Group also purchase recycled gold products from the general
public for sale to gold product collectors and dealers for

trading purpose.

Revenue from sales of jewellery products is recognised at a
point in time when the jewellery products and recycled gold
products are delivered to the customers and the respective
controls has been passed. When the Group receives a deposit
for jewellery order or contribution to customer reward scheme,
this will give rise to contract liability at the inception of a

contract, until the revenue is recognised.

Revenue from provision of jewelcrafting services is recognised
at a point in time when the jewelcrafting services are

rendered.

No individual customer contributing revenue which accounted
for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue during both

years.

AEBERBERBANTEENEEDS
mEE KEERBLBEREREAMKE
TERMHE AL EEIEHIRE N TR
%o ARETA-—RAVRBEODRESE
mARNECEMREBRZIHHEER
ZRE o

i

KEHERENKRENIREERNREKE
TEMERNTFEP RIAMZEHIEEER
RiER - RAEBRERKETEREHE
FREEHRE  AHNBERRA A
W BT BEEWEERERAL -

KA RMAIRE T ARG A Y as & R IR
B0 T RSB A2 — B B R

REZMEFEAR  BEEANSEAEAEE
Wk R E B8 10% o
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION —

continued
Entity-wide information — continued

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers have
a right to exchange/refund within a year. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the exchange/
refund rate. A refund liability is recognised when the Group
expects to refund some or all of the consideration received
from customers. The Group’s right to recover the product is
recognised as a right of return assets included in “Trade and
other receivables” and a corresponding adjustment to cost of

goods sold.

All sales contracts have an original expected duration of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction

price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are
generated in Hong Kong. An analysis of the Group’s non-
current assets including property, plant and equipment and
interests in associates by their physical geographical location

is as follows:

Non-current assets:

FRBEE :
- Hong Kong - BB

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

ko HER — &

mEMER — &

REAKENRESOER  TERPEER
—FRERBR SRR AEEEREBER
BHERMETRE JRREX - BAKER
HRERDAEHEFRER - AISHER
RRBE o ANEE U B E m o R R
REEREEBERIE S K H Mt WK
B WHREREEEEMmKAR

i 4415 & 480 R 55 TR BRI IR 25 — 4 S
Py BINIR IR B B 9 A AU 15 5
Bt - BB S RERERAHHRD
1R -

4R B 9 S0 ED R P M P A M 2 2
B AREEAERBECESH M
RUAE(REME WS RN R R
AR Z )T ¢

2023 2022
2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
33,358 29,302

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

6.

OTHER INCOME 6. HflA
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Bank interest income SRITHBUA 90 1

Dividend income from financial assets EZAF{EFAEBRHNEREE

at FVTPL HO I B A 482 858
Government grants (note) WIS B (A7) 1,668 58
Sundry income HETEUA 56 88
2,296 1,005

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised

government grants in relation to the funding support received
amounting to HK$1,241,000 (2022: Nil) and HK$347,000
(2022: Nil) from the Employment Support Scheme under the
Anti-epidemic Fund and the Technology Voucher Programme
under the Innovation and Technology Fund, both set up by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
respectively. The Group also received subsidies of HK$80,000
(2022: HK$58,000) from the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) government for enterprises to retain their employees.

The purpose of the Employment Support Scheme was to provide
financial support to enterprises to retain their employees who
would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the
grant, the Group was required not to make redundancies during
the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying
wages to the employees. The Technology Voucher Programme
aims to promote the effective use of technological services and
solutions by the small and medium enterprises to enhance their
operational efficiency.

There were neither unfulfilled conditions nor other contingencies
attached to the receipt of those grants. In addition, there is no
assurance that the Group will continue to receive such grant in
the future.

Hiat - REBREE202343A31AILFERER

BT B - % BN A e E B BIA T = K
¥ 3% 2 B B i i B AR 25t 8 R BT
BMEESIBEEIGEMERNESER
25N B4 1,241,000587C (20224 : )&
347,000 7L(20224F : #& ) o A& E I
FREARLRMB([HE ] BNEORE S
EEA%EIES - £%/80,000% 7T(2022
4 : 58,000/87T) °

RELERT BB M AR EREMBEED - U
BRI MR NESR - RIEFFBIE -
AEBRBRHBRTSHELAKHEES
AR EETE - Ml Bz 5T 8IRE /W
REE /DA RE AR RS KR TS
RARTT AR EERE o

UK HR % 55 4k B 0 A8k 1) AR R M L b ok
REE - O MTREAKERKRSESR
WERA RAf B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

7. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7. HutE (B8 FE
2023 2022
2023 & 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAEIT FET
Net foreign exchange gain ME 5, W s ) 5E 60 71
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial BERAFEFABEHNESREEN
assets at FVTPL, net AFEWE (BE)FE 2,098 (2,305)
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of financial HERAFEFABRNS R
assets at FVTPL BEMN(ERE) MW (2,040) 427
Net loss on written off of property, MEEME - BE K& B FEE
plant and equipment (31) -
87 (1,807)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MIIHEA
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITRERFE 775 867
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEABNOREER 444 259
1,219 1,126

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. KRBIAIEE

PR AT S IR DA IR (GE ) TR B R

Loss before income tax has been arrived at after charging/

(crediting): EE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Lease charges: HERX :
- Short-term leases - BHAE 442 670
— Covid-19 related rent concessions received - BI2019 BB E R
(note a) HEEe R Hita) (176) (156)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREEOTE
(note 14) (Bt 14)
- Owned assets - BEEE 1,179 809
- Right-of-use assets - FRERE 8,160 10,221
Total depreciation of property, plant and M BERJENTELSE
equipment 9,339 11,030
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREEOTE
(note 14) (Hizz 14)
- Recognised as selling and distribution costs - BRBHEHERDHEKA 7,260 9,337
- Recognised as general and administrative - BRBE—RRITHMAZ
expenses 2,079 1,693
Total depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREENTELE
equipment 9,339 11,030
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) sE=Me(HF11)
- Fees - 8% 3,958 3,847
— Salaries and other benefits - Fie REMEF - =
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions - RIREAIGT BT 150 140
4,108 3,987
Other staff's salaries and other benefits B T#H e KA AN
- Recognised as cost of goods sold - BRACEE@AR 714 817
- Recognised as selling and distribution costs - BRRBEE RS HEAR 9,793 8,680
- Recognised as general and administrative - BRB R RITHMAZ
expenses 4,190 3,976
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme Hn 8 TRIRE A B R
contributions
- Recognised as cost of goods sold - ﬁEﬂFjE’%ﬁuuﬁﬁZ$ 183 193
- Recognised as selling and distribution costs éJ 441 387
- Recognised as general and administrative
expenses 320 329
Total staff costs B TR A% 19,749 18,369
Provision for/(Reversal of provision for) ECL g RWFIENESEEER
allowance for trade receivables (note 19) Bfl/ (BE) (Mt 19) 11 (29)
Auditor’s remuneration % E A & 500 500
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BR AR HFEERA 99,123 72,996
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value H%T SR E R S FFE(H D)
(note b) 430 357
Net loss on written off of property, plant and WEmE  BREREEEFER
equipment 31 -
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e MR ME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX — continued

Notes:

(a) During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the rent
concessions received by the Group are in the form of a discount
on fixed payments during the period of severe social distancing
and travel restriction measures introduced to prevent the spread
of Covid-19.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised
write-down of inventories to net realisable value of certain
finished goods of HK$430,000 (2022: HK$357,000).

10. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

9.

10.

MRBAIEE — &
A3t

(a) HEZE2023FNM2022F3A31HILEE K
S ER BB L2019 ¥ 8 TE ik R S m S HE M
BRER A BR A A 22 5 B K% Bk 35 PR 61 15 1t H T 4
1B & IR A EE R HTN ©

(b) A ZE202343AF31ALFE " HORTFEE
=5 T 5P m & 7] & 37 % {6 430,00078 7T
(20224 : 357,000 7C) B B A E HER ©

BRER
BRERNEBEDRTIIBEHE

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 ¢
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Loss

Loss for the year FREE (1,891) (7,683)
2023 2022
2023 £ 2022
‘000 ‘000
FiE FiR

Number of shares
Weighted average number of shares A&7 hn#E 58 750,000 750,000

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

158 CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

11.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

()

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the
executive directors, chief executive and independent
non-executive directors of the Company, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

BEE  BSTHRAERESHMH

(a) EBERBSTHASHH

RELETRA - BARRGAE
383N IE (AR BEEFHEE
FORGIF 2 PR BB A
RFRRTEERERTRABRAR
REVBUIFFAITEFTOFH B
T

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme

benefits contributions

MR EHRER
Hitr g7l B
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FE FET FET FAT
Year ended 31 March 2023 HZ2023F3H31H
LEE:
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) BERE(TTREE) 3,000 - 120 3,120
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLZLT 323 - 15 338
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk* REEXL* 293 - 15 308
3,616 - 150 3,766
Independent non-executive BUFRTES :
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat BEEkE 114 - - 114
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick —~ Ek3&%E4E 114 - - 114
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRFHEE 114 - - 114
342 - - 342
3,958 - 150 4,108
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

11.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

(a)

1. EE BESTHRAERESHMH —

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued F=
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments — (a) EZSRBSTHAEHMH — £
continued
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
R RN
-] H 48 7 AT @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET 87T T8
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE2022%3A31H
HFE
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) BEE(TTHEH) 2,925 - 111 3,036
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLZLT 286 - 14 300
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk* REBERL* 285 - 15 300
3,496 - 140 3,636
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat BREELLE 117 - - 117
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick — E k3854 117 - - 117
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRFERTE 117 = = 117
351 - - 351
3,847 - 140 3,987

*

Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk is the spouse of Mr. Fu.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of
the Company. There were no bonuses paid or payable
to directors which are discretionary or are based on
the Group’s or Company’s performance for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. No remuneration was
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years. There is
no arrangement under which a director has waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

* REER L RHEEENLE -

EXITRARITEENFMER AR
NAIRAEENE R EHIRENR
BEM- EXFIRBYIERITES
MFMEE AR BRENREE
7 o B Z 20234 F20224 3 A 31
BIEFE  SESTEAHNBHIR
BASBEHRA AR KRR X EN
HEMEZES RREFE  ~NEE
WM AR R EE N FHMERR
S| h0 A ZN & B 5 A0 A AN £R B B A 5%
B EABREE MEEHES
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued

(b) Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group include
one (2022: one) director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2023, details of emoluments are
included above. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2022: four) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

11.

EE BETHRAEREEHFH —

=
=i

(b)

EEREFHMES

REZE2023F3 A31BILFEENT
LEERTMNEEBEARARIMNIZE
F(2022F : 1%) » HF BB
REX - H#p4Z(2022F : 48)&
BEiES (BEERRREE IR
BITHAB)MFHIIT

follows:
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Employees (==
— Salaries and other benefits — e hah 1,314 1,546
— Discretionary bonus — MIBIEAL 799 459
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIKEAIFT B K
contributions 71 70
2,184 2,075

The emoluments of these remaining four highest paid
individuals in the Group for the year were within the
following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,000 # 7T

RAFE  AREZFERIBERS
FrENE A R F BN E 20 T

2023 2022
2023 2022 F

Number of Number of
employees employees
EE®AR EE#E

4 4

Certain employees of the Group are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined based on a percentage
of the profit before income tax of the relevant
subsidiaries during both years.

There were no amounts paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office (2022: Nil).

AEEETEENEZRNRIEAL F
A SRR %M EFEAEBEM
&R R RER T AT S N R BB o

=

= o
REFBY EE AL R FHES S
5 B9 1 5 T2 3| A0 A AN 2 B A9 3 A0 A
A £ B B /O 52 B ok 1F A BE B B
(2022 : 4&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FIEHER
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBEFEH

— Current year e - =

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FERESEMSH([EEMER])
- Current year e - =
Deferred tax credit (note 17) EER B 2 (KaF 17) (686) (1,382)
Income tax credit SR (686) (1,382)

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as the Group
did not derive any assessable profit arising in Hong Kong
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiary in the PRC is
25% for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

B = 2023 F K 20223 A31 A IEFE -
B A 7R &2 B 4 N B S R AE (R FE FR B
A M ESHR BB RIS TR
BIER B EREBELRBEMERE
B - B = 2023 F & 20224 3 A 31
HitFEFEHBARNREE25% o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

12.

13.

INCOME TAX CREDIT — continued 12.

The tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

FEHER — &

FRRRAFE E N E A2 W R E

BB RERMFHBEDT

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax b Bt Bl E5 18 (2,577) (9,065)
Tax charge at the applicable income  #&iE A5 555 & 16.5% £l
tax rate at 16.5% BEIE (425) (1,495)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A % B sz BT 7§ 52 &
for tax purpose 113 264
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEARRBRANREZE
tax purpose (343) (149)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRHIBFEENH L 2 2
Effect of different tax rate applicable  REM FDEAEELEHE AR A
to a subsidiary operating in the HANTRBERZE
other jurisdiction (65) (47)
Others Hth 32 43
Income tax credit FriSEiiE 2 (686) (1,382)

DIVIDENDS

13.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Group during
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, nor has any

dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

IR

REBREZE2023F & 202243 A31H
IEFE R RIS SBRETAEE - B3R

FHRTMAREREMBE, ©

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

163



164

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

14. ¥ BERRE

Furniture,
Right-of-use Leasehold fixtures and Motor
assets  improvements equipment vehicles Machinery Total
RENE KA EE
ERAEEE BRIE RERRHE RE Ha i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FAT FAET FHET
Cost B
As at 1 April 2021 R2021%4A 1R 28,404 3,543 3,624 898 322 36,791
Additions R 1,135 3,842 550 - - 5,527
Modification B3l 15,293 - - - = 15,293
Written off Mg (1,444) (371) (102) - - (1,917)
Exchange adjustment & 5, - - - - 9 9
As at 31 March 2022 ®202253A31 B R
and 1 April 2022 2022F 4 A1 H 43,388 7,014 4,072 898 331 55,703
Additions NE = 149 496 514 - 1,159
Modification B3] 3,564 - - - - 3,564
Written off s - = > (44) = (44)
As at 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H 46,952 7,163 4,568 1,368 331 60,382
Depreciation nE
As at 1 April 2021 R2021%4A 1R 18,105 3,429 3,305 840 321 26,000
Provided for the year —~ FREE 10,221 708 78 22 1 11,030
Eliminated on written ~ #fiH5 if%
off (1,444) (371) (102) - - (1917)
Exchange adjustment & i, 3% - - - - 9 9
Asat31March 2022 R 202293F31B K
and 1 April 2022 2022F 4 A1 H 26,882 3,766 3,281 862 331 35,122
Provided for the year — FRE A 8,160 820 321 38 - 9,339
Eliminated on written #8404
off - - - (13) - (13)
As at 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H 35,042 4,586 3,602 887 331 44,448
Net carrying amount BRI FE
As at 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H 11,910 2,571 966 481 - 15,934
As at 31 March 2022 ®2022%3 A31H 16,506 3,248 791 36 - 20,581

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

continued

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, included in the net carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment are right-of-use

assets as follows:

M 20234 K 202263 HA31H -
ENRESFEATEREESE :

Carrying amount as at
31 March
RZFE3HASB1H
ZREE

2022

14. 9% BERRE — &

Depreciation for

the year ended 31 March
BEZF3H3BLEEE

ZiTE

2022

2022 F 2022 F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FAET

Retail shops TEIE 10,697 13,211 6,962 9,012

Office E/NE 1,213 3,295 1,198 1,209

11,910 16,506 8,160 10,221

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. REEE N Rz =

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Cost of investments in associates KB &R R 2 B KA 17,800 8,900
Share of post-acquisition losses and  EIEREEEE R EMEE

other comprehensive expense, net 2 BRE WA 2
of dividends received (376) (179)
17,424 8,721
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

Set out below are details of the associates of the Group as at
31 March 2023 and 2022:

Form of Place of
business incorporation
Name of associate structure and business
=E AR 3 R
BERNRARE EBEBEER EE 3
Grand Rise Creation Limited liability Hong Kong
Limited (“Grand Rise”)
EERIZER AR BRAE B
(EERIZD
Dia Myth Jewelry (MFY) Limited liability Hong Kong
Co., Limited
(“Dia Myth”) (note)
EEKRBAER AR BRAE B
(=& 1) (H2)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group acquired 20%
equity interests in Dia Myth from Mr. Fu, the ultimate controlling
party of the Company, at a cash consideration of HK$8,900,000.
The board of directors of Dia Myth consisted of three directors,
for whom one was nominated by the Group and the Group
was able to exert significant influence over the financial and
operating activities of Dia Myth. Accordingly, Dia Myth is an
associate of the Group and its financial result was accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group using the
equity method.

The associates have a reporting date of 31 March.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

15. RBE AR zEm — &

LATR A& 78 5 B B 2 A | 10 2023 4F K 2022
FIANBZFE ESREHHAEE

mEBERK °
Particulars Proportion
of issued of effective
and paid interest Principal
up capital held activity
EBTR BB
BERAFE REmLA FEEK
100 shares 13% Property letting
(2022: 13%)
100 f& 13% MERE

10,000 shares

10,000 A%

(20224 : 13%)

20% Property letting
(2022: Nil)

20% MERE
(20224 : )

HZE2023F3A31ALEFE  AEEUR
& X 58,900,000 LM A A Bl &AL =R 5
BEEWBSE0%BIE  SENEES
BEINEE MEFZ EZREERE
BNt B 5 B RE S 2 B 1 B IS R A R B e
MEATE - At ' FEAREENHEA
Al HUBEEFREREZRAEENEGS
B IEERRALR o

tENRZRERSA3ASIH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

Set out below are the summarised financial information of the

associates:

15. REE QT 2s — &
AT R R AL B IS E RS

Dia Myth

L8

As at

31 March

6 September

As at

2022
(date of

Grand Rise
EBRIE

2023 acquisition) 2022

b 2022 £

2023 F 9A6H
3A31H (KEEH) 20224
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET F&T FAET F&T
Current assets mMENE E 10,370 3,015 11,800 11,586
Non-current assets EMBEE 66,000 66,000 75,000 75,000
Current liabilities A E (31,737) (24,515) (15,619) (16,518)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - - - -
Net assets BEFE 44,633 44,500 71,181 70,068
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued 15. REERNToEsE — 2
Set out below are the summarised financial information of the TN EBERARZTHERBE
associates:

Dia Myth Grand Rise
&% HERIE
For the
period from

6 September
2022 (date of

acquisition) to
31 March 2023

12022 F

9H6H

(kEga)=

2023 &
3HA31HEM 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET FEL
Revenue Wz 735 1,704 1,704
Total expenses F #EE (590) (490) (655)
Profit before income tax BRELRTADE 145 1,214 1,049
Income tax expense FRr8RiAX (12) (101) (93)

Profit and total comprehensive HiR “FERFEH L2 H

income for the period/year W =5 4R =R 133 1,113 956
Dividends received B AR S - - -
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15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

15. REE QT 2s — &
EERRRSENEREDEY

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information

to the carrying amount of the investments in Grand Rise and

Dia Myth are set out below:

AT REER

R LA E R AR

Dia Myth

=%

As at
31 March

As at
6 September
2022
(date of

Grand Rise

EERIE

7JIPEBN acquisition) 2022
i
2022 F
9H6H
(WeiEH) 2022 F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FEr
Net assets FEERTE 44,633 44,500 71,181 70,068
Ownership interests held  AEBEHEA#ER
by the Group 8,927 8,900 9,254 9,109
Elimination of leases TS (147) - (610) (388)
Carrying amount of REH I B REKZER
the investments in Bt A AR AR E{E
associates in the
consolidated financial
statements 8,780 8,900 8,644 8,721

The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other

commitments relating to its investments in associates.

AEBERF AR ERRLLA TAHA

BEREAMAGE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

16. RAVEFABSENERMEE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET F&T
— Unlisted equity investment outside - RBEABRINOIE LT

Hong Kong (note) RIS E (fTat) - 5,000

— Listed equity investments in Hong - REBERN LTARERE
Kong 3,066 4,026
3,066 9,026

The fair value of the Group’s listed and unlisted equity

investments has been measured as described in note 36.

Note: As at 31 March 2022, the amount represents the unlisted
equity investment in Fai Po Global SPC — Binjiang Flower City
Property Development Fund SP (the “Fund”) of which the Group
holds 2.62% equity interests. The Fund is a sole proprietorship
registered in the Cayman Islands on 16 May 2019 and is
established primarily to focus on alternative real-estate related
investment opportunities in the PRC. The Group is subjected to
a lock up period of 3 years for holding the equity interest of the
Fund. The unlisted equity investment was redeemed during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

AEEN ETMRIFELTRERED E5T
= HkIEE36 AT o
Hizt - R202243A31H A B 4 B & RFai

Po Global SPC — Binjiang Flower City
Property Development Fund SPHFE LT
RERE(EL]) AEERKEESKRARE
=M 262%c B2 /MN2019F5 16 B R
FENSIMNBERE  HRZFEHT
RPBENEREHESBREKSE  ~&E
RETRAIENEED  UFEEEHNKR
ANHEE o 23 FRIEIREE R 20234 3 A
BTHEEAED -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 17. EEBHEEE
The movements in deferred tax assets during each of the LMEHANRELETIBEEZSHWOT -

reporting period are as follows:

ECL Temporary

allowance difference
Provision for for trade on
inventories receivables  depreciation Tax losses Total
EREK
RENEH nEN
FERE GFEBFERG ERER BEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T T T
As at 1 April 2021 R202146 4818 SIS 8 285 2,799 3,665
Credited/(Charged) to  MBzEt A/ (1K)
profit or loss (note 12)  (Hfiz 12) 59 (5) (133) 1,461 1,382
As at 31 March 2022 R202263A31B K
and 1 April 2022 2022F 4R 1H 632 & 152 4,260 5,047
Credited/(Charged) to ~ MBzE A/ (1K)
profit or loss (note 12) (FigE12) 71 2 (53) 666 686
As at 31 March 2023 R 202343 A31H 703 5 99 4,926 5,733
As at 31 March 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of R202363A31H  AEBARSAFIE
HK$30,567,000 (2022: HK$26,516,000) available for offset &5 18 30,567,000 78 7T.(2022 % : 26,516,000
against future profits. A deferred tax asset of HK$4,926,000 P TT) - AR AR 28 B o 7 2023 4F
(2022: HK$4,260,000) has been recognised in respect of 3H31H ' B5tEE 29,855,000 T(2022
losses of HK$29,855,000 (2022: HK$25,826,000) as at 31 % : 25,826,000/8 7T ) ERBEEHR IR E E
March 2023. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in 4,926,000%8 70 (2022 4 : 4,260,000/ 7T) ©
relation to the remaining tax losses of HK$712,000 (2022: 202343 A31 8 I & 5t 64 T B A E B
HK$690,000) as at 31 March 2023 due to the unpredictability 712,0007% 7T(2022 £ : 690,000 7T ) #E A
of future profit streams. The losses may be carried forward REMIBEE - RE ARG REETE
indefinitely. Bl o 518 A] BE R PR B4 EE o
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18. INVENTORIES 18. &
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials =R 8,111 8,413
Work in progress EE S 746 406
Finished goods RUPK oh 50,127 50,815
58,984 59,634

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of inventories
included provision of HK$4,261,000 (2022: HK$3,831,000),
which was determined with reference to the net realisable
value of the inventory items. Additional provision of
HK$430,000 (2022: HK$357,000) was made during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

M2023%F3H31H: I+ E M kK E &
B 1 B 54,261,000 (20224 :
3,831,000 L) HNL&Z7FEHEE
B Al B IR F (B = E o Bl £ 2023F
SABIBLEFER BIEDBINEE
430,000 77T (2022 £ : 357,000 L) °

19. EZRHEHMEWRIE

2023 2022
2023 2022 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Trade receivables E 5 W RIE 1,930 1,337
Less: ECL allowance i TERE B B iR R (32) (21)
Trade receivables, net B S IECFER) 1,898 1,316
Rental deposits HEZe
— related parties (note 34(a)) - B (Wit 34(a)) 494 494
— third parties - H5=7 1,873 2,158
Prepayments, other deposits and TEfRIE - EfiEe &
other receivables (note) H b e W skIB (A7) 1,806 1,262
Right of return assets REEEE 392 357
6,463 5,687
Less: non-current portion of rental B HERSRERB S K
deposits and prepayments for Y% - BERZERN
property, plant and equipment FEfTFRIE (2,261) (2,028)
4,202 3,559

Note: Prepayments, other deposits and other receivables mainly
comprised of (i) prepayment to suppliers, (ii) money held in trust
for purchase of shares under Share Award Scheme and (iii)
deposits for management fee and utilities.

All trade and other receivables are denominated in HKS.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Biat - BARE - AtReREGRKHREZEZERE ()R

R (i) RS FEE S P R RS B (D 28Rt &)
ZBEMES R (i) ERERAAREES
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued

The following is an ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables after ECL allowance by age, presented based on

the invoice date.

ESRHMBWRIE — &
TXRBREZFZAHRZIRERSHOE
HEERRRBRASEE S REFED
#7 o

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K 1,055 492
31 to 60 days 31E60K 438 346
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 174 195
Over 90 days B8 90 X 231 283
1,898 1,316

The Group’s retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash
or through credit card payments. Trade receivables arise from
credit card sales are normally settled in one to two business
day in arrears. For the remaining customers, the Group allows
a credit period up to 90 days. A longer credit period may be
granted to large or long-established customers with good

payment history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group will internally
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customers. Management closely monitors the
credit quality and follow up actions will be taken if overdue
debts are noted. Credit limits attributed to customers and
credit term granted to customers are reviewed on a regular
basis. Approximately 88% of the trade receivables as at 31
March 2023 (2022: 91%) are neither past due nor impaired
and they were assessed to be of good credit rating by the

Group.

AEEBEFNTEHETENRENE
BERRNFET  ERRHEELENE
SRWFIABEGRTENE2EEX B
BB TEPME - AEBEAFERAE
REEZEIOK © K& M AR R IR EA
REFRHPRTNBTFREEREERS -

REZEMMELA - NEB KL TH
BEEFHNERERIIREFPRAEERAR
B EEERYEBSCERAERTUBERR
H@ ES R RIEETES - SFZEH
ERARBEUARAZFRENEREREE
HAE 1T B 4% © 1220234 3 531 B 4188%
(20224F : 91% ) K& 5 FE UL X IB BT £ 46 HA
NERE  BUHEAEEFNGEARITEE
Al e

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

173



174
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued 19.

The movement in ECL allowance for trade receivables is as

ESRHMBWRIE — &
BHRKFENBREEERREENED

follows: PO
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHETT FAET
At the beginning of the year F4 21 50

ECL allowance recognised/(reversed) ERER,/(&D)HWTELHEZE

during the year BB 11 (29)
At the end of the year FR 32 21

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers with reference
to the historical repayment. The Group collectively assesses
the impairment using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on share credit risk characteristics of
customers. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 March 2023 and
2022 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

EARAEEEERREEN—IH5 A%
E2EER RN ARERFEANISEE
FH o AEEFRAEREFHERGEER
B RF B0 28 D 4B A B 4 P L (B 1 SR B
e TRREBEEAHEBIRUFIERGE
BB ER  ZEER DIRE2023F &
2022 3A3IHMEFEMEHREEEBRE
(WS ERE) BB E BT o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued

19. BEZ R HEAEYRKT

==
— &

Gross Net
carrying Average ECL carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
AHEE

IREAE FHEsEER EERE REFE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET

As at 31 March 2023 A 2023F3A31H
Low risk (N 1,486 1.3% 19 1,467
Medium risk R E R R 444 2.9% 13 431
1,930 32 1,898

As at 31 March 2022 M 202243 A31H
Low risk (agEaizy 1,062 1.3% 14 1,048
Medium risk R R 275 2.7% 268
1,337 21 1,316

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical

observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors

and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is

regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant

information about specific debtors is updated.

In addition, the directors of the Company considered that the

presumption of default has occurred when the instrument is

more than 90 days past due would be rebutted by considering

the expected subsequent and historical repayment from the

trade debtors.

METEIEXDRBEEEABRFHNEE
AERENRMGE  URBEAMHBZK
AHB NSRS ERHEL A
ERETHEEHE  URRENGHE

TEEANIBEEH -

o - RAREZRR
BEHEANRRERRELER > TARS

\ 4R

ZRKREES

838 90 R RI B A 12 40 O RERAS 15 HEED
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20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. RITEKREAS
2022
2022 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Bank balances and cash RITEHREE S 20,657 20,572
Included in bank balances are the following amounts RITHEMRBETNIIAEREEERGES

denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies AN B EHERRUA -

of the respective group entities:
2023 2022
2023 §F 2022 F

HK$°’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR (T AR ]) 5 4
United States dollar (“US$”) Ex(lEx]) 80 79
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) Hx(TB7l) 30 -
115 83

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rate of HR1T 458812 2028 FF ] 2022 F 3 A 31 HAY

0.01% per annum as at 31 March 2023 and 2022. WRITMISHNEEFF0.01%5T 8 °
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21.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BEE R EmBARE

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables B 5 RN HRIA 2,342 2,205

Accrued staff costs FEEH B TR 2,996 2,256
Other payables and accrued charges  HthfE{f 5018 & fE&+ & A

(note) (Htaz) 1,153 1,681

6,491 6,142

Note: Other payables and accrued charges mainly comprised of (i)
accruals for audit fee, (ii) provision for annual leave and long
service payment and (iii) payables for general operations.

The credit period of trade payables is within 90 days except
for two of the major suppliers are within 1 year. The following
is an ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on

the invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

Hiet - BfbRNRERE BRI EEE () B E
A (i) FRER RS S 8 E & (i) BN — =&
HIRRIE e

HPRMNFENEERRO0R - EREE
EHERNCEEDRRIFRN - UTARE
BREHRRBEBERZRHM2ITEBEFE
NFRIBHRREC AT

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 &

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 to 30 days 0&30K 945 216
31 to 60 days 31E60K 17 741
61 to 90 days 61E 90K 33 338
Over 90 days #3890 KR 1,347 910
2,342 2,205

Included in the Group’s trade payables are the following

amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional

currencies of the respective group entities.

Uss

AEENEZENFABRE NIIABREE
EEEIEER AN B FHERKA

2022
2022 4F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,098 2,118
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22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

22. EHEE

2023 2022
2023 2022 4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Customer reward scheme (note) R SEE T EI (A Z) 4,815 4,221
Customer deposits BEFER 87 174
4,902 4,395

Note: The Group launches a customer reward scheme in its retail
stores in Hong Kong which requires the customers to make
regular payments to the Group in return for redemption of the
Group’s products in the future.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the entire amount of contract

liabilities are expected to be realised within one year at the

end of the reporting period.

The increase in contract liabilities as at 31 March 2023
was mainly due to the increase in payments made by the
customers under the customer reward scheme during the

reporting period.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the year
amounting to HK$3,713,000 (2022: HK$4,185,000) have been

recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2023.

23. REFUND LIABILITIES

Refund liabilities arising from right of REEREAZERXERE

return

23.

Hiat - AREBREEBTEEHEL —HES RE)E
& o KA BB RE P M AEEE A FIAR
AR IR LB A EE & ©

R2023F N 2022FE3 31 H @ FBHIA L
BEEACEERAREHERE —FAE
I o

R2023F3A3THANEBEMIEMNES
ARPRREHPRE S EB SR
#hn o

FHMAEES K B E3,713,000%8 T
(2022 : 4,185,000/870) B RE = 2023
F3A3 BIEFERNERR AR -

RRAER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET TFET

463 388
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24,

LEASE LIABILITIES 24, HEEB
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TRINTAEEHEBEORILS L EIH
of the Group’s lease liabilities: H:
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
Total minimum lease payments: SERERBETE
— Due within one year - R—FAZ|H 8,004 7,767
— Due in the second to fifth years - RE_FZFERFEH 4,530 9,882
12,534 17,649
Future finance charges on leases THEABNARKRREER
liabilities (346) (651)
Present value of leases liabilities HEaEMNERAE 12,188 16,998
Present value of minimum lease SEEERIBRRE -
payments:
— Due within one year - R—FRNEH 7,732 7,372
- Due in the second to fifth years - RE_FEFERFHE 4,456 9,626
12,188 16,998
Less: portion due within one year B IERBAER —FEREIH
included under current ZE5
liabilities (7,732) (7,372)
Portion due after one year included FIVEIERBIBEN —FERIH 2
under non-current liabilities =) 4,456 9,626
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24,

LEASE LIABILITIES — continued

For the year ended 31 March 2023, leases are negotiated
for terms of one to three years (2022: one to three years).
Certain operating leases require the Group to pay either
minimum guaranteed amounts or turnover rent that is based
on prescribed rates of corresponding sales, whichever is the

higher.

As at 31 March 2023, lease liabilities amounting to
HK$12,188,000 (2022: HK$16,998,000) are effectively secured
by the related underlying assets as the rights to the leased
assets would be reverted to the lessors in the event of default
by repayment by the Group. During the year ended 31 March
2028, the total cash outflows for the leases are HK$9,084,000
(2022: HK$11,008,000).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

24.

HEaE — &

BH1E2023F3A31BIEFE - B —
E=F(2022%F : —E=F )MHAREE °
ETREHEERAEEZINHFERES
o IZEEHEEE L Rt EME A
(UBREEAE) -

7202343318 + 12,188,00058 7T (2022
£ ;16,998,000 7T) WHE B BEHARIE
A EEER - b TR HE NS B R0
HEX HEAENENESERTHM
A ° B E2023F3A31H - HENERE R
i 749,084,00078 7T (20224 : 11,008,00058
JT) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 K& % 2023F 3 A 31 HILFE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES — continued

Details of the lease activities

24.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group has entered into

leases for retails shops and an office.

Type of

right-of-use asset

EREEENER

Retails shops

A
ijid
o

Office

b
ot

Financial statements
item of right-of-use
asset included in

M B R
EAEEENER

Property, plant and

equipment

M - BB RRE

Property, plant and

equipment

WE -~ BB &R

Number

of lease

HENEE

7 (2022: 7)

7 (2022 4 :
7)

1(2022: 1)

1 (2022 % :
1)

There is no extension option or termination option on the

leases.

HEsE — &

HEFBNFE

R 2023F M 20223 A31H * A&EE

HEEE R — @R

Range of
remaining
lease term
BRTIHEHRZ
gE

0.5 to 2 years
(2022: 1 to 3

years)

05F2F
(2022 :
1E34)

1 year
(2022: 2
years)

14
(20224 :
2%)

HHE W EIEHA AR PR EERE -

NEFLEE °

Particular

B

Some of the
contracts contain
additional variable
lease payments
depends on
the turnover
rent during the
contract period

BOAKNETHEUAEH
HAHEE SRR
BRI BHE
N

Only subject to
monthly fixed
rental payment

EFEXEA
Ehatiika
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25. AMOUNT DUE TO CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Mr. Fu BELE

25. EMNERRRRE

2022

2022 %

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET

5,000 =

During the year ended 31 March 2023, part of consideration
of HK$3,900,000 for acquisition of an associate was paid
by the Group to Mr. Fu. The acquisition of the associate
was completed on 6 September 2022 (the “Completion
date”). The balance represents the consideration payable
and is denominated in HK$. The amount due to controlling
shareholder is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on the
Completion date. The amount was fully settled subsequently
to the year ended 31 March 2023.

26. BANK BORROWINGS

Unsecured bank borrowings EIKIRITE R

#H E2023F3A31H ASEEMELLE
T E-—HBEERRNBORE 28R
3,900,000 7T ° W g &% Bk & A Bl B 1 2022 4F
9A6HEMK(TRKB ) o ZEMIERAR T FKIE
BHTHREREL ABITAHE © &R BAER
. B RBLTHBEE - ZHIEBE2023
FI3AIBILFEHERIBEE -

26. HITEXR

2022

2022 £

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
28,856 28,295

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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26. BANK BORROWINGS — continued 26.

The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

WITER — &

AREBRTIERWETEEBFRET ¢

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank borrowings are repayable (note) $R1T{E L T IR AIEE
(Hi7z)
— Within 1 year -1FR 6,088 5,465
— After 1 year but within 2 years - 1FEE2FR 6,304 5,620
— After 2 years but within 5 years - 2FBESFRN 13,729 14,834
— After 5 years - 5F 1% 2,735 2,376
Total bank borrowings RITEAREE 28,856 28,295
Comprising: B
— Amounts due within one year —-IARBAEESS
shown under current liabilities RERERIER
and containing a repayment on B — 4 9 | BR FE A<
demand clause IA 6,088 5,465
— Amounts that are not repayable - BAGERE AR
within one year from the end —FRNEEESE
of the reporting period but R ERERIERAO A
containing a repayment on GIAREBEE)
demand clause (shown under
current liabilities) 22,768 22,830
Total bank borrowings RITERARTE 28,856 28,295

Note: These amounts are based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the bank borrowing agreements.

The Group’s banking facility letters contain a clause which
give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of whether
the Group has complied with the covenants and met the

scheduled repayment obligations.

Wi - HERIBEARITIE S & W0 KBS B HR
# o

AEENRTRERMTSE —BIER - £
ERANERDRERBREZRIANER
T AEEREE T2 REITHEENR
Bff-
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26.

27.

BANK BORROWINGS — continued

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022,
borrowings are guaranteed by HKMC Insurance Limited

the unsecured bank

under the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme and personal
guaranteed by Mr. Fu, the ultimate controlling party of the

Company.

All bank borrowings bear variable-rate ranging from Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum to Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate minus 2% per annum as at 31 March 2023
and 2022.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal
to contracted interest rates) per annum on the Group’s bank
borrowings as at 31 March 2023 and 2022, is as following:

ofE ¢

\
L

Effective interest rates:
— Variable-rate borrowings

Lo
4 S8

o S

26. WITER —

72023 FF & 2022F 3 A 31 H « EILMR
TEFHBBREREERAAIREFR /N
TREERTEREERKBAERRARL
PEAR 77 (8 S A SR LB A FER ©

72023 K 202293 A31 8  LUZENF
K BEMEHRITER  AXEHASF
BILREERNRF2.5% % B TRERF
TR 2%

R 20234 [ 2022F3 531 H » AN&EE R
TEROSFERFRER (IRERTLF

KM -
2022
2022 &
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT

3.1% to 3.6% 2.5% to 3%

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKS$. A SRITE B LB ITEHE -
SHARE CAPITAL 27. BR7A
Details of movements of share capital of the Company are as VAN SHEFEBWOT :
follow:
Number
of shares Share capital
RH A &S
HK$ HK$°000
BT FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.01 BT EER
Authorised: EE
As at 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, 720219481 H * 20224
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 3 A31H 202264 A1H
& 202343 A31H 1,500,000,000 15,000,000 15,000
Issued and fully paid: BITRMR
As at 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, 12021 &4 818 * 20224
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 3A31H 20224 A 1H
N 202393 A31H 750,000,000 7,500,000 7,500

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
6 March 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with, and to provide incentive to
eligible participant(s) including employees (full-time and part-
time), executives or officers, directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers, agent, and other persons approved
by the board of directors, to optimise their performance and

efficiency for the benefit of the Group.

The board of directors may, at its absolute discretion, offer to
grant an option to eligible participant(s) to subscribe for the
shares of the Company at an exercise price and subject to
the other terms of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue at the time dealings in the shares of the

Company first commenced on the Stock Exchange.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of

ten years from its adoption date.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 and no
share options were outstanding as at 31 March 2023 and
2022.

28.

BRETE

RARMERETEI((ERESE )T
BIZER2019F3 A6 HBBM AR RE
RN o AR AEST 2 S TE R 5| Wt BB o LA H
b5 RS ERSHE NS EETS
% WHEEERSHE(BRIEEB IR
B8 =SLAEEEISR/AE -EF &
A B HER - BEF  REREF
SHUENEMA L) BRSBTS
THERBRBE -

EEgraENEREERSHEERTE
B - DATE RS IRFE 5T B H A (R AR R T
RITEEREARFRD o BIERERRE
B R AR & B o] E 5T 21 A % I B0 P A B
kiSRRG EHE R T ERBERAT
BROBREBRIMEERBBEITRO A
#)10% °

RS 8 8 B iR B HE S+ F IR
DAREK -

B £20234F K 20223318 It F E
BMEEREREERESSIEERD « 17
ff « FESE SRR - B R 2023 FF K 2022 F
3 A 31 B S 4 (a6 AR AEE (8 AR TTAEE o
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29.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company’s share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
19 March 2021. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme as
follows: (a) recognise and reward the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by (i) any individual or
businesses that purchases the goods and services from the
retail stores or online sales services or its subsidiaries or its
consignment sales agent operated by the Company whom
the board or its delegate(s) consider, in their sole discretion,
to have contributed or will contribute to the Group; (ii) any
individual, being a full-time employee, director (including
executive, non-exclusive and independent non-executive
directors) whom the board or its delegate(s) considers, in
their sole discretion, to have contributed or will contribute
to the Group; and (iii) any individual or business whom the
board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Persons”); (b) align the interests of the Eligible Persons with
those of the Company, and strive for the future development
and expansion of the Group; and (c) attract high-calibre
personnel to join the Group and provide them with incentives
to participate in the continual operation and development of
the Group.

The board of directors may, at its absolute discretion, offer
to grant awarded shares to eligible persons subject to terms
of the Share Award Scheme. The maximum number of shares
which may be awarded under the Share Award Scheme
shall be 75 million shares, representing approximately 10%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company as at
the adoption date. The board shall not instruct the trustee to
subscribe for and/or purchase any shares for the purpose
of the Share Award Scheme when such subscription and/or

purchase will result in such threshold being exceeded.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

29.

B A0 SR Bt &

RNQE 8RR 22 EhE &I ([ A {n 22 EhET 21 1)
THiRIE R 2021 F3 A 19 B BB RRHER
R - AT R EZEEEZ B/ : (a)
RA 2R () B AR R EENTEERR
FHERBEBEERKRY  MEZEX
HERERRE2ENBERAAREEHA YA
5 B BR A AE A (B A SR S sl HL K B
PRAIKEFTERE : (| FAEHBES
EX(EENT FRTRBIFERITE
F) MEFTXEBRERRZEBER
AREBH S GUAREEED TR EME
A R(NEFSXERERRZERNE
RAEHBHREHAS B EL TR A EM
BAASCE(EERALDHANEBEEDY
S FELRMBERSEEER : (b)EEE
EATHFI R E AR B M RIS REF— 50
WEEABREBERRERRBEREM
R (c)RIIBFAL MARER - Wi E R
EEAEENBECERERUN -
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29.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME — continued

The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to
a selected participant shall not exceed 1 per cent (1%) of
the total number of issued shares of the Company as at the

adoption date.

The board of directors may, at its sole and absolute discretion,
accelerate the vesting of awarded shares and/or waive and/or
alter any or all of the vesting conditions attached to the Share

Awarded Scheme.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of: (i)
the eighth anniversary date of the adoption date; and (ii) such
date of early termination as determined by the board provided
that such termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of

any selected participant.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the trustee purchased
1,160,000 awarded shares (2022: 9,470,000) at a total
cost (including related transaction costs) of approximately
HK$60,000 (2022: HK$693,000). As at 31 March 2023, the
trustee held 10,630,000 (2022: 9,470,000) shares of the
Company purchased but not yet awarded under the Share

Award Scheme.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, no awarded shares had been
granted, vested and lapsed pursuant to the Share Award

Scheme.

29.

R EBEE — &

ARTRETLSLEEZESBRMHEBE - T
SHREBRRMEBARR S HTRNER
Z 1% °

E=gn 2 ERITINRER 0 R E M
SR R RE BRI R B A
Ef kAT A 5B R T -

RN ATRE AL LE - ()R B H
WENEEER - R (i) EFFETE IR
RIEAH - EARAKRETSZETALE
FELEENEMRBERN

RB|ITELXAERAAZETANDEER
B & B AN B AR R AR (D SR ED 5T &4 A
1HE MR R 2 M LR
E £2023F3A31AEEE 558 A
#& B 1,160,000 % #Z @) i 15 (2022 :
9,470,000 % ) + A KA (BIEHE R 5K
7K ) #)60,000 % 7T(2022 4 : 693,000 /&
JL) ° 20233 A31H @ ZEARBER
7] 10,630,000 % (2022 £ : 9,470,000 f%)
1B M ARIERR D SRR 5+ & (E i 520 o

R 20234 K 202263 A31H * RAEEf

B L - BEMKK -
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30. LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. HERKIE
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the lease commitments for MR2023F k20223 H31H - RS
short-term leases are as follows: M EREDT
2022
20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FRN - 15
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EXREE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Contracted but not provided for — BERTAEREE —
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RERE 153 276

188 CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 32. MEFHELENAEBEYHK
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFAMAEEREZTBAEENBEE
arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising from e MmEETHMEENABRERESRE
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, ELIBERNTEBGEEREMERAD
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s BAMERERESREMNAE
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.
Amount
due to
controlling Bank Lease
shareholder borrowings liabilities Total
EAERRRTE RTER HESE @
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FETL FBTL
As at 1 April 2021 R2021%F4R1H - 31,324 10,805 42,129
Cash-flows: R
Interest expense paid BRFEHY - (867) (259) (1,126)
Proceeds of bank borrowings RITEHEHE - 2,570 - 2,570
Repayments of bank borrowings BRFTER = (5,599) = (5,599)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERENAE D - - (10,079) (10,079)
Non-cash: ¥HE
Entering into new lease HIE: 1) - - 1,135 1,135
Lease modification EHHE! - = 15,293 15,293
Covid-19 related rent concessions B2019 5 B R ERIAH
received (note 9) MeRE(MH9) - = (156) (156)
Interest expenses recognised (note 8)  ERERMF SFHX(Mi£8) - 867 259 1,126
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 120223 A31B K
2022F 4 A1 H - 28,295 16,998 45,293
Cash-flows: ReR:
Interest expense paid BERFIERZ - (775) (444) (1,219)
Proceeds of bank borrowings RITEHEHE - 6,000 - 6,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EERTER - (5,439) - (5,439)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERENAE S - - (8,198) (8,198)
Non-cash: ¥8E:
Lease modification ELREH - - 3,564 3,564
Advance from the controlling BERBRERR(M )
shareholder (note) 5,000 - - 5,000
Covid-19 related rent concessions B 2019 52 E ik m SR A
received (note 9) BREREHE9) - - (176) (176)
Interest expenses recognised (note 8)  EHERMF BEX (Mi28) 775 444 1,219
As at 31 March 2023 R2023%3A31H 5,000 28,856 12,188 46,044
Note: The amount due represents the consideration payable to the BEE - FEAN 2TE A U B S Y R A R R B (B

controlling shareholder for acquisition of Dia Myth (note 25).

(Hftzx25) °
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33.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees but subject to a maximum amount of

HK$1,500 per month for each employee to the scheme.

The employees employed by the PRC subsidiary are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiary is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under the

schemes.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

retirement benefit schemes in future years.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme contributions for both

years are set out in note 9.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

33.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with its

related companies during both years:

Acquisition of an associate I iE — KB R A

Interest paid on lease liabilities to

the controlling shareholder of the F 8
Company

Principal paid on lease liabilities to
related companies controlled by
the controlling shareholder of the PiNGA
Company

Interest paid on lease liabilities to AL AT X NHEESEE

ZHE

associates

Principal paid on lease liabilities to A2 AR X NHBSEE

ZAE

associates

AN A R 4% AR AR 3R A2 ) Y A
related companies controlled by AR NMEEaEZ

AR 72 B 42 s A SR 61 O 88
BARIXMNMHEERES

34. BBERS

(a)

2023
2023 fF

BREAMBRRPEMEE D ST
BENX S RERIN REBERM
EEEANREHRTEATIRS

2022

20224

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
8,900 =
26 60

499 1,200

97 25
2,342 1,679

Included in trade and other receivables as at 31 March
2023 were rental deposits paid to related companies
controlled by the controlling shareholder of the
Company of Nil (2022: HK$210,000) and associates of
the Company of HK$494,000 (2022: HK$284,000).

Included in lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023
were due to the related companies controlled by the
controlling shareholder of the Company of Nil (2022:
HK$3,334,000) and associates of the Company of
HK$2,920,000 (2022: HK$3,312,000).

R2022F3A31EME 5 K E b
W HIBBEEX N T AR FZERR
RETESNEBEAR SRS
210,000 7T ° 7202343 A31H
NESREMERRIBEREINF
i & A Al 2 M & & & 494,000 7 7T
(20224 : 284,000 7T) °

MN2022463A31EBEHEEER R
FE 5 78 A 5] % AR AR 3RFT % il 69 8
B /A 713,334,000/ JT° 12023
F3HA31B & & &8 EE o
& A 72,920,000 (20224 :
3,312,000/87T) °
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34.

35.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — continued 34. BBARS — #&
(b)  The remuneration of key management personnel during (b) ETEZEEBEABRZMEFE N
both years was as follows: BT -
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Short-term employee benefits EHEE T 4,647 4,504
Retirement benefit scheme BRI AFT B K
contributions 166 158
4,813 4,662
Key management personnel include directors of the ZEREAEBREARTNES
Company and other senior management of the Group. EAEENHEMESREEE - =2
The remuneration of key management personnel is EERBAEFMBEAARIEERER
determined by management of the Company having ZEARBE LTS BRAEBE -
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. EXERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains

unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes lease liabilities, amount due to controlling
shareholder and bank borrowings as set out in notes 24, 25
and 26, respectively and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed

in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through new share issues and

raising or repayment of bank borrowings.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. €T H
Categories of financial instruments SRIASE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REERATTENEREE
— Bank balances and cash - RITHEHREIRE 20,657 20,572
— Trade and other receivables* - B 5 RH M UGRIE " 5,203 4,742
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFABESHNESREE
— Unlisted equity investment - JEETRERE - 5,000
— Listed equity investments — FTRRERE 3,066 4,026
28,926 34,340
Financial liabilities SRMasE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IZE KA EN SR AE
— Trade and other payables** - B 5 R H b & FRIE 2,414 2,658
- Bank borrowings - IRITER 28,856 28,295
— Amount due to controlling — FEfSHZERR AR R 5KE
shareholder 5,000 -
— Lease liabilities - HEEE 12,188 16,998
48,458 47,951
* Prepayments, right of return assets and non-refundable deposits * TEREEMNRE REREERTARER
are excluded &
o Accruals are excluded e TEIEETE
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, lease liabilities, bank
borrowings and amount due to controlling shareholder. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (foreign currency risk, other price risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The directors of the Company manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.
Market risks
Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as majority of the
revenue were denominated in functional currency of the

respective group entities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s

36.

EETH — &
BEEMREEEEREE

AEENEI2CR TEBERAFEAA
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RITEBRERE BHREMEMNFE -
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ide BEREeRTAERNARERETS
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®)  FEERBEABESER  MAERL
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E=EE KBRS R R ARG KA R
WEEAENERE

TEmE
SHE/R R

HRABOREAFHEEEERNIER
Bt AASEREENESRRE
R MMEHR  AEEBRINEAENE

foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities WRENBENERmENT ¢
at the end of the reporting dates are as follows:
2023 2022
2023 §F 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
Assets BE
US$ ET 80 79
RMB AR 5 4
JPY Bt 30 -
Liabilities =Fi]
US$ e 2,098 2,118

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risks — continued
Foreign currency risk — continued

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of
US$, RMB and JPY. Under the pegged exchange rate system,
the financial impact on exchange difference between HK$ and
US$ will be immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are held by group entities having HK$ as
their functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared. No sensitivity analysis has been prepared
for HK$ against RMB and JPY as the amounts involved are

insignificant.
Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair values or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates). The Group is exposed to change
in market prices in respect of its listed equity investments

classified as financial assets at FVTPL.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the Group’s exposure to equity price risk at the reporting

date.

If the price of the listed equity investments had been 5%
higher/lower, the loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 would
be decreased/increased by HK$153,000 (2022: HK$168,000)
for the Group, as a result of the changes in fair value of

financial assets classified as FVTPL.

EBMTHR — &
MERBREREEERBEE — &

TS EfE — &
SNEER — 42

AEBEEERBEET - ARERA TN
R - RIZFEXRBBGE  HREEE
BREANALSETIHEEBEERAR
M%EEEW%E AT EETT 2 R
BEEZEOMBYEFTEKN - F L&
REGRESN - AAMFPEELTE
AN BMITERBTEARE R B TR
REE DT o

R 1E18 /8%

H At AR RS & B 15 B (R R R HMNE

‘ZHEJJ%WI\)“%U C EHERMTEZ Y
Hﬂ%&*&é"*ﬁﬁfﬁ HEMBEEL LT
Pt B N F IR s R DA R PR T RR B 75
BE MEMSERESH AR -

HRZ T

TOGREDHIRIBEARERKE BB
EERARAERRRTEE

i FTRREERESBER LA TK

5% @ NEBHE2023F3A31HILFE
B /&5 18 15 8 4 3 1 153,000 7% 7T (2022
£ : 168,000%7T) * JYER D EA/IZ AT
Bt \BERfEmEEN A T EZ I

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT 43R

195



196

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z 202343 A 31 H L FE

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risks — continued
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk and cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to lease liabilities bearing
fixed rates (note 24), bank balances (note 20) and bank
borrowings bearing variable rates (note 26), respectively. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation on Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate arising from
the Group’s HK$ denominated bank borrowings. The Group
currently does not have a policy on cash flow hedges of
interest rate risk. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

risk should the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points and 10 basis points increase or
decrease in bank borrowings and bank balances, respectively
are used which represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing borrowings and bank
balances had been 100 basis points and 10 basis points
respectively higher/lower and all of other variables were held
constant, the loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 would be
increased/decreased by HK$220,000 (2022: HK$216,000).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

THMIHE — &

BHEREEEEREE — &

FEER — &

AEBEESREESXEE R E(ME
24)F B RRITHE R (M RE20) BT E A
KRITER(H T 26) R FEFNXEAR Kk
RenfXERARENRSRMNERR
TEEPRAKBEAETFHENRITIERA
EENBLTREEINENKSY - AEER
B 30 S S A R B IR SR ERER -
Am - BEEBESRANXRR  UHELE
2 BB AN EER

TXRSEE DT IRFEHRIETES
BT EMNFERRETE - DT HERERE
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at
the end of each reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, management
of the Company has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. Given the Group’s wholesale
customers are widely spread over, management considers
that the credit risk associated is low. In addition, the Group
collectively assesses the impairment for its customers using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings based on
shared common credit risk characteristics of customers. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

36.
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RANEENERAE - RTEEREEE
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 36.

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal

credit rating Description

A6 L

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts

1K SR F R AGERBORE - B EE (a8

FRIE

Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settles after due date

BEBALERINEARRENR - ERER

GET) AR &R

High risk There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

= R AIED il E & F SN EIREE R (= B R B 156 fE R
U

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

&8 ERBBETREEREERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

i sH BiE ﬁﬁmﬁﬁAﬁ#@i%ﬁl% AN 65 &

R B & AT B 5RIA

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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EEmLER B ETE —
AEEHNABEERR

85l

Trade receivables
B 5 EWBMIE

Lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired)
FEHBRHEEER
— EEERE

Lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired)

FEEREEERE
— EEERE

Lifetime ECL (not

credit-impaired)

FEPEREERE
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
FEPEBEEER
— EERE

Amount is written
off

HSHTRIA

.
i

2 A AR B R TS

Other financial
assets
HittemEE

12-month ECL

+—1@A
TBHEEEE

12-month ECL

@A
HHERER

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-impaired)

FEREREEER
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
FEMEREEER
— EERE

Amount is written off

S TRIA
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The table below details the credit risk exposures of

the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

Financial assets at
amortised cost
Trade receivables

Other receivables

Bank balances

BAHERAHENSR
EE
BARKTR

At IR

RITEER

Notes

it

20

36. €T H — &
HERREEEEREEK — &

External Internal
credit credit
rating rating

HE A

5 EERS €

N/A Low risk
TEH iR
Medium risk

RERR

N/A Low risk
TEH iVEN
A- to AA+ N/A
A-ZEAA+ @R

12-month
ECL or
lifetime ECL
T=EA
SFEPRES
REBR

Lifetime ECL
(simplified
approach)
FEHEY

REEE
(Blx)

Lifetime ECL
(simplified
approach)
FEHES

FEBE

(Bfz)

12-month ECL
128 A%
EEEE

12-month ECL
+=f@A
EHEEER

EERBRRBEFG — &

TERFVAKEEREENEERR (AL
TREMEEERNE)

Gross carrying amount

REAE

2023 2022
2023 F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,486 1,062
444 275
3,305 3,426
18,462 19,905
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

The credit risk on other receivables is minimal as the risk of
default is low after considering the factors as set out in note
3.7. No ECL allowance has been recognised as the total ECL

of other receivables is considered as immaterial.

The Group assesses the expected losses on financial assets
and considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of the respective asset and whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
assets at the reporting date with the risk of default at the date
of initial recognition and considers available forward-looking

information, including below indicators:
. internal credit rating based on historical information;

. actual or expected significant changes in the operating

results of the debtors;

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behavior of the debtors, including changes in the

payment status of debtors; and

° the possible impacts associated with the overall change

in the economic environment arising from Covid-19.

The Group applies the simplified approach and assesses the
lifetime ECL for trade receivables at the end of each reporting

period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit risk
and ECL for trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 and 2022
are set out in note 19.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. Based on
the credit rating, the directors of the Company considered the

ECL for bank balances is insignificant.
Liquidity risk

Management of the Company has built a liquidity risk
management framework for managing the Group’s short and
medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking
facilities and by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual
cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.
As at 31 March 2023, the Group has no available unutilised
bank borrowing facilities (2022: Nil).

36.
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BHREREEEEREE — &
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Liquidity risk — continued

36.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual

maturities for its financial liabilities. The table has been

drawn up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial

liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group

can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with

a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest

time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing

to exercise their rights. The table includes both interest and

principal cash flows.

EETH — &
HERREEEEREEK — &

mBETmEE — &

TERAIAKRERESRABENHBRE LD
HIR - TRIBBAKE AR ERERHK
FRMEE  URRPBEEEORIHRE
EnE - ABME - THRRITITELERN

MR - S AREREEGRIDRITER
BRE D mxF BHNEREEE - TRE
KERNERNERERE

Weighted On demand Over 1 year Total
average or less than but within  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flow amount
il AREXR HBA1F AERRE
FHME  F-FARE BR5FR MERE REE
% HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FAET FET
As at 31 March 2023 R2023%E3A31H
Trade and other payables &5 RH N FIE - 2,414 - 2,414 2,414
Bank borrowings (note)  $R{TER(AE) 3.42 28,856 - 28,856 28,856
Amount due to controlling  FEfTEI AR FE
shareholder - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000
Lease liabilities HEAR 3.1 8,004 4,530 12,534 12,188
44,274 4,530 48,804 48,458
As at 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H
Trade and other payables &5 R fENFIE = 2,658 = 2,658 2,658
Bank borrowings (note)  RITER(HiE) 2.81 28,295 - 28,295 28,295
Lease liabilities HEAR 2.98 7,767 9,882 17,649 16,998
38,720 9,882 48,602 47,951

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Note: Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “On demand or less than 1 year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2023, the
aggregate carrying amount of these bank borrowings amounting
to HK$28,856,000 (2022: HK$28,295,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the borrowing agreements with the principal and
interest cash outflows as follows:

Aggregate principal and interest cash outflows repayable:

36.

EETH — &
HERREEEEREEK — &

mEBEZEbE — &

BiaE - RUA ERIBAB S - AETAERERKER
BREORITERDAAIERERS—FR
B8 | WEREERN - K 2023F3 A31H -
ZFIRITE AR E 42 © 8 /3 28,856,000 8
T (2022 4F : 28,295,000 7T ) ° & &t & AN
SENMBERR - AAREFRARITTIA
FIRE B TIE EL YIS ZSREANRF B K - AN 7]
EERHEGE  RERTERGRBERBER
HOTEECERBHESE KN RFSEESR
Ha

FEEEAS RABIRE T H 4% -

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 year 1FER 6,978 6,110
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&E2FR 6,981 6,110
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FRBSFR 15,097 15,320
After 5 years 5F 1% 2,923 2,409
31,979 29,949
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Fair value measurements

Financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of
a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on
the observability of significant inputs to the measurements, as

follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets and liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly, and not using significant

unobservable inputs

Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial

asset is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level

of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 36.

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Fair value measurements — continued

The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position on a recurring basis are

grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

EETH — &
HERREEEEREEK — &

AFENE — &

RBE B EEENGE B BRRARARA
FEAENESREES AR TERERN
T

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£ et E=Z®
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FET FET
As at 31 March 2023 720233 H31H
Financial assets at FVTPL: & A (EFT AEEN
TRUEE ¢
— Listed equity - EiRERE
investments 3,066 - - 3,066
As at 31 March 2022 M 202243 A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL: & A FEFT AR
ERUEE ¢
— Unlisted equity - JEETRERE
investment — - 5,000 5,000
— Listed equity - ERERE
investments 4,026 = = 4,026
4,026 - 5,000 9,026

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

The directors of the Company considered that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2023 and 2022
because of the short maturity period on their inception.

HZE2023F3A31HIEFEN - WEH
AEHE M F_HRFE=H(2022
Fom) -

RAREERR SMEERBGBEZEE
BEHEN20234F % 2022643 A31AZA
FEITEEAZE RRAHBAMBE
R EAAEER -
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Fair value measurements — continued

As at 31 March 2022, the Level 3 instrument represents
investment in the Fund which was stated at fair value
determined using the price to book ratios of comparable
listed companies adjusted for lack of marketability discount
at 25% with reference to the valuation report of this equity
investment prepared by an external valuation expert with
recognised professional qualifications and recent experience
to perform the valuation. An increase in the discount for lack
of marketability would decrease the fair value. As at 31 March
2022, it is estimated that with all other variables held constant,
an increase/(a decrease) in discount of lack of marketability
by 5% would increase/(decrease) the Group’s loss by
HK$333,000.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 36.

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Fair value measurements — continued

The fair value of unlisted equity investment has been
estimated using a guideline public company method
based on assumptions that is not supported by observable
market prices or rates. Below is a summary of significant
unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial instrument as
at 31 March 2022:

Unobservable

EETH — &
HERREEEEREEK — &

APEE — &

JEEMBAERENAFED MR ERT
HEERIEHH BRI TS ELERA R
FOEEME - BRN2022F3A31H &
BT BB ERE AT A R AU A8t
R

Relationship of unobservable

Valuation technique input input to fair value
fh{ERIS THR@ASE FHARMABBEANLENBR
Unlisted equity Guideline public company  Price-to-book ratio:  An increase in the ratio will result in
investment method 1:1.21 an increase in the fair value of the
unlisted equity investment
IE R E M5 A &R A A MARE : 1:1.21 LRI S IE EHRER BN A FE

Discount of lack
of marketability:
25%

T
25%

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3

instrument is as follows:

7

An increase in the discount will result
in a decrease in the fair value of the
unlisted equity investment

P i< I EmREREN R TE
e

FEZRTEERFANESHUT :

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

At the beginning of the year RS 3 5,000 5,675
Fair value changes recognised in REBEZRERNATEES

profit or loss - (675)

Redeemed during the year BB D (5,000) =

At the end of the year HAR 464 - 5,000

Fair value changes on unlisted equity investment are
recognised in profit or loss and included under “Other gains/

(losses), net”.

FELMRERENRFEZSHNIBRE
R WEt A Efudeas,/(B18)F8E ] -
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. FEMBARINFE
At the end of each reporting period, the Company has indirect REREHR - ZRARRATEZNBEAR
equity interests in the following principal subsidiaries: AlEA EERE

Equity interest attributable

Place of Issued and paid up to the Group
incorporation/ Type of legal Place of capital/registered ARERERRE
Name of subsidiary establishment entity operation capital 2023 2022 Principal activity
BRIREMRE/
KEAAER HfAT/HIEE ERRERA B2y iftEs 20235 005 EED
SEGE(M)ARAT PRC Limited liability PRC HK$8,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of jewellery
company
SERE (R BRAT i BRAR ki 8,000,007 EERE
Chuk Fung Jewellery Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Manufactory Limited company
FEREEHHARAR B BRAR &k 10,0007 RAER
W-Rich Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Procurement, marketing,
company promotion, distribution

and wholesale of jewellery
BETRRAA Bk BRA Bk 1AL RERE  TRRER
5E HERHE

Chong Fai Group Holdings  Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Procurement, marketing,
Company Limited company promotion, distribution of
jewellery and trading of

recycled gold products

BEERERERAA B BRAR &% 10,0007 HERE  mARER
5E AEREK
Chong Fai Jewellery & Gold  Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$20,010,000 99.99% 99.99%  Procurement, marketing,
Company Limited company (note) (note) promotion, distribution

and retail of jewellery
BERE L TARAA &% BRAR & 20,010,000%7 (Hi) (Hi) HERE mHRER
5 HEREE

King Jewellery & J Company Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Dormant
Limited company
SERERRERAA &k BRAR &% 1AL Bx
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &= 202343 31 HILF[E

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

— continued

Note: As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the amount of the non-
controlling interests are less than HK$1,000.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year or anytime during the year.

37.

FEWBRARNFEE — &

Htat - R 2023F 202243 A 31 H » FE{ERRERS
2 eFPRAIT1,000 TIE °

1L B B B TR AR AR Bl AN R [ A AT B
BITEMERES
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38. ADQRMBMMRE

COMPANY
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (note) RHB AR &R E (AaE) - =
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H U KT8 247 307
Amount due from a subsidiary JiE Uy — P FfY B 2 R 5K7E 37,289 37,289
Bank balances and cash WITHBRRBE S 204 206
37,740 37,802
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H fth fE {3k 08 10 10
Amount due to a subsidiary FE A~ — R BT B & B3R I8 13,864 13,854
13,874 13,864
Net current assets REBEEFE 23,866 23,938
Net assets EEZFE 23,866 23,938
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital N 7,500 7,500
Reserves i 16,366 16,438
Total equity R 23,866 23,938

Note: The amount of investments in subsidiaries is less than HK$1,000.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. ARFHMBMRREK — £

COMPANY — continued

Movement of the Company’s reserves:

AR TR
Shares held

for the Share

Share Award Accumulated
premium Scheme losses Total
AR 1D 5E B
= ERE
R 1% E Z R RitER @ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 April 2021 MN2021F4 /18 35,242 - (18,092) 17,150
Purchase of shares for the RIRAR 1D B =t 188 AR (D
Share Award Scheme - (693) (693)
Loss and total comprehensive  EE&REANLEMASLESHE
expense for the year = = (19) (19)
As at 31 March 2022 and M2022F3 31 H R
1 April 2022 2022%F 4818 35,242 (693) (18,111) 16,438
Purchase of shares for the IR AR 17 5B =t 21 AR D
Share Award Scheme - (60) - (60)
Loss and total comprehensive  EE&REANZEMALAHE
expense for the year - - (12) (12)
As at 31 March 2023 R2023% 3 A31H 35,242 (753) (18,123) 16,366

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had distributable reserve
of approximately of HK$16,366,000 (2022: HK$16,438,000),
calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. Such amount includes share premium which may
be distributable provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

M2023%F3A31B A" AAEHEA D
B % # #916,366,00078 JT(20224 :
16,438,000/ ) * HIRIBEFAEHS QA
SRS 22 E (1961 F A3+ AR E RIERT)
MatEE L - MR EBEZED KR SH B
Hif& « NDFIBEHE ER — R EEBIEF
FEZEIE - AESER SN THIRAR
DimME o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHRE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &% 20234 3 A 31 HILFE

RESULTS E4
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A3MALEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 % 20224 2021 4 2020 £ 2019
HK$°’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET F&ET FET FA&ET
Revenue Wz 136,822 107,344 101,702 119,869 175,589
(Loss)/Profit before LR (E5HE) 8 F
income tax (2,577) (9,065) (1,244) (6,854) 3,908
Income tax credit/(expense) FFEHEE S, (FIk) 686 1,382 964 1,370 (1,685)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EE),HF (1,891) (7,683) (280) (5,484) 2,223
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BENERE
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 £ 2022 F 2021 4F 2020 4 2019 4F
HK$°’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET F&T FET F&ET
Total assets BEMRE 128,261 129,168 136,234 187 &35 157,471
Total liabilities BEpE (57,900)|  (56,218)  (55,293)  (55,730)  (69,692)
Total equity AR 70,361 72,950 80,941 81,605 87,779

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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